CargoAdvantage Single Transit Insurance Policy

Insured Organisation: As per Marine policy from Chubb Cargo Plus Period: As per Marine policy



Contents

Contents	
Important Notices	3
Policy Wording	4
Section 1: Standard Cover	4
Section 2: Special Conditions	5
Section 3: General Conditions & Claims Procedures	7
Appendix 1: Institute Clauses	9
Institute Cargo Clauses (A)	9
Institute War Clauses (Cargo)	10
Institute Strikes Clauses (Cargo)	12
Institute Classification Clause	13
Cargo ISM Endorsement	13
Cargo ISM Forwarding Charges Clause	14
Inland Transit (All risks) Clause	14
Institute Cargo Clauses (Air) (excluding sendings by Post)	14
Institute War Clauses (Air Cargo) (excluding sendings by Post)	15
Institute Strikes Clauses (Air Cargo)	17
Institute Cargo Clauses (C)	18
Loading And Unloading Clause	20
Institute Replacement Clause	20
Institute Replacement Clause (Second-Hand Machinery)	20
Institute Cyber Attack Exclusion Clause	20
Institute Radioactive Contamination, Chemical, Biological, Bio-Chemical And Electromagnetic Weapons Exclusion Clause	20
Information Technology Hazards Clause	20
Date Recognition Endorsement	20
Termination Of Transit Clause (Terrorism) 2009	21
Sanction Limitation And Exclusion Clause	21
About Chubb in China	.22
Contact Us	.22

CargoAdvantage Single Transit Insurance Policy

Insured Organisation: As per Marine policy from Chubb Cargo Plus Period: As per Marine policy

Important Notices

Please read this Policy carefully. If it does not meet with your requirements, you should inform us immediately through your insurance intermediary.

Chubb Insurance Company Limited (referred to as 'the Company', 'Insurer', 'we' or 'us' within this Policy) and the Policyholder (also referred to as 'you') named in the individual Policy of Insurance agree that

- this Policy and any specific conditions (s) subsequently issued shall be considered one document and any word or expression to which a specific meaning has been attached shall bear such meaning wherever it appears,
- information supplied by the Policyholder/Insured shall be incorporated as part of the contract,
- the Company will provide the insurance described in this Policy, subject to the terms and conditions, for the period of insurance shown and any subsequent period for which the Insured shall pay and the Company shall agree to accept the premium,

provided that this Policy shall not be in force unless it has been initialled by an authorised representative of the Company.

Policy Wording

Section 1: Standard Cover

To enable the cover provided under this Policy to be understood worldwide the standard cover is provided by the internationally recognised Institute Clauses listed below, subject to Special Conditions, Section 2 and General Conditions & Claims Procedures, Section 3:

For shipments by sea and/or land conveyances:

- Institute Cargo Clauses (A) CL 382 01/01/2009
- Institute War Clauses (Cargo) CL385 01/01/2009
- Institute Strikes Clauses (Cargo) CL386 01/01/2009
- Institute Classification Clause CL354 01/01/2001
- Cargo ISM Endorsement JC98/019
- Cargo ISM Forwarding Charges Clause
- Inland Transit All Risk Clause

For shipments by aircraft:

- Institute Cargo Clauses (Air) (excluding sendings by Post) CL387 01/01/2009
- Institute War Clauses (Air Cargo) (excluding sendings by Post) CL388 01/01/2009
- Institute Strikes Clauses (Air Cargo) CL389 01/01/2009

For shipments insured after the shipment date and/or any shipments by sea that are stowed on deck unless in a fully enclosed container:

• Institute Cargo Clauses (C) CL384 01/01/2009

For all shipments:

- Institute Cyber Attack Exclusion Clause CL380 10/11/2003
- Institute Radioactive, Contamination, Chemical, Biological, Bio-Chemical and Electromagnetic Weapons Exclusion Clause CL370 10/11/2003
- Institute Replacement Clause 1/1/34
- Second Hand Replacement Clause (applicable to used/second hand machinery/equipment)
- Loading and Unloading Clause
- Information Technology Hazards Clause
- Date Recognition Endorsement
- Termination of Transit Clause (Terrorism) JC2009/56 01/01/2009
- Sanctions Limitation and Exclusion Clause

For ease of reference these Institute Clauses are contained in Appendix 1 at the back of this Policy or can be found in our website at <u>www.chubbcargoadvantage.com/insurancepolicy</u>.

It is important that you acquaint yourself with the coverage, exclusions and conditions within these Institute Clauses.

Section 2: Special Conditions

This section sets out where the cover provided under the Policy has the following additional conditions attached:

2.1. Africa shipments

There is no cover for any shipment beyond discharge from a ship or aircraft at an arrival port or airport within Africa.

There is no cover for any shipment prior to loading to a ship or aircraft at a departure port or airport within Africa.

There is no cover for any shipment on a land conveyance within Africa.

2.2. Debris Removal Extension

The Insurer will pay in addition to any other amount recoverable under this Policy, costs and expenses reasonably and necessarily incurred by the Insured in connection with the removal, disposal and/or destruction of debris of the interest insured but excluding absolutely:

- any expenses incurred in consequence of or to avert or mitigate pollution or contamination or threat or liability thereof
- 2. the costs of removal of cargo from any aircraft or vessel.

In no case will the Insurer be liable for more than 10% of the insured value of the interest insured or USD100,000 whichever is the lesser.

2.3. Electrical, Electronic and Mechanical Derangement

Excluding loss or damage due to electrical, electronic, electromagnetic or mechanical breakdown or derangement unless caused by an insured peril.

2.4. Goods Carried under Temperature Controlled Conditions

Where goods of any type are carried under temperature controlled conditions, cover is provided for loss or damage subject to the following: Loss or damage to the interest insured resulting from any variation in temperature is excluded unless attributable to:

- 1. Breakdown of refrigerating machinery resulting in its stoppage for a period of not less than twenty-four consecutive hours; or
- 2. Fire or explosion, vessel or craft being stranded, grounded, sunk or capsized, overturning or derailment of land conveyances, collision or contact of conveyance with any external object other than water, discharge of cargo at a port of distress

Excluding loss or damage arising from any failure of the Insured to take all responsible precautions to ensure that the interest insured is kept in an appropriate temperature controlled environment.

2.5. Household Goods and Personal Effects Clause

The Insurer will pay for loss or damage to household goods and personal effects in the manner specified below, provided that:

- 1. The Insurer will obtain a full valued and itemized inventory from the shipper prior to dispatch.
- 2. The Insurer will cover artwork, antiques and collectibles only if they are supported by a valuation certificate.
- 3. The Insurer will pay the replacement value of the new items in the country of destination.

This Policy will attach from the time the packing of items commences at origin residence, continues during the ordinary course of transit, and will terminate from the time the interest insured is off-loaded and safely delivered into destination residence.

In respect of owner packed goods, cover hereunder will be limited to

the total loss of an entire shipping package.

In no case will the Insurer be liable for any of the following interests:

- 1. Artwork, antiques and collectibles greater than USD10,000 per item
- 2. Bullion
- 3. Cash securities and other cash equivalents
- 4. Precious jewellery
- 5. Precious metals
- 6. Precious stones

2.6. Motor Vehicles Clause

In respect of motor cars, motor cycles, recreation vehicles, buses, mobile or motorized machinery, railway vehicles, trucks and nonmechanically propelled items (collectively hereinafter called "motor vehicles"); cover hereunder will be subject to the following terms and conditions:

The basis of valuation and/or loss settlement under this Policy will be as follows:

- 1. New motor vehicles will be declared at their new replacement value in the country of destination plus any additional freight, packing or similar transit costs incurred.
- 2. Second-hand motor vehicles will be declared at their secondhand replacement value in the country of destination plus any additional freight, packing or similar transit costs incurred.
- 3. Veteran and/or vintage and/or classic and/or limited edition and/or similar motor vehicles will be declared at their current market value as supported by a recent and recognized valuation certificate; plus any additional freight, packing or similar transit costs actually incurred.

In no case will the Insurer be liable for:

- 1. Loss or damage to motor vehicles carried by vessel unless shipped in a RORO vessel or closed or open top container.
- 2. Loss or damage whilst motor vehicles are under their own

^{© 2016} Chubb. Coverages underwritten by one or more subsidiary companies. Not all coverages available in all jurisdictions. Chubb®, its respective logos and Chubb. Insured.^{5M} are protected trademarks of Chubb.

power or in tow except whilst in tow within the confines of the port (or airport) immediately prior to or immediately after discharge from the vessel (or aircraft) and/or on to or off of the vessel (or aircraft) or into or out of the container.

- 3. Damage to tires and/or brakes and/or suspension.
- 4. Loss or damage reasonably attributable to atmospheric humidity and freezing of water in the radiator and/or cooling system.

It is a condition of this Policy that in respect of any motor vehicles with an insured value greater than USD10,000 the shipper will make contact with and appoint the nearest Lloyd's Agent or the Insurer approved surveyor and instruct them to carry out a survey which will meet with the following minimum requirements:

1. Report on the general condition of the motor vehicle with particular reference to any existing damage such as chips, dents, scratches, damage to paint work, rust, oxidization and discoloration; and where applicable, the condition of all electronics and machinery; and the valuation of the motor vehicle.

- 2. The agent or surveyor will discuss, agree and report on all of the following:
 - a. the stow and lashing of the motor vehicle to the container, and
 - b. the method of loading will be discussed and agreed with the carrier's representative, and
 - c. the lifting equipment will be certified, adequate and used within its safe working load.

2.7. Pairs and Sets

If the interest insured consists of articles, which form a pair or set the Insurer will only pay the proportionate sum insured of the article (s) lost or damaged, without reference to any special value the damaged article may have as part of a pair or set.

2.8. Uncollected Cargo Protection

The Insurer will pay in addition to any other amount recoverable

under this Policy, any extra cost incurred by the Insured solely by reason of the failure of a consignee/cargo receiver to collect cargo at designated place of delivery, subject to:

 a limit of USD 10,000; and
 10% coinsurance on the amount recoverable under the Policy exceeding the deductible.

2.9. Used and/or Unpacked and/or Partially Packed and/or Damaged Goods

This Policy covers loss or damage to used goods that have not been fully reconditioned and/or unpacked and/or partially protected and/or damaged goods whilst in transit subject to the Policy terms and conditions but excluding:

- 1. rust, oxidisation, discolouration and corrosion
- 2. breakage, scratching, denting, bruising, chipping and cost of repainting
- 3. twisting, bending and distortion

unless the loss or damage is attributable to a peril insured under Institute Cargo Clauses (C).

Chubb Cargo Plus Insurance Policy. China. Published 07/2016.

© 2016 Chubb. Coverages underwritten by one or more subsidiary companies. Not all coverages available in all jurisdictions. Chubb®, its respective logos and Chubb. Insured.SM are protected trademarks of Chubb.

3.1. Duty of Disclosure

Where the Insurer makes inquiries about the interest insured or the circumstances of the Insured when concluding this Policy, the Policyholder shall make a truth disclosure.

If the Policyholder deliberately, or due to gross negligence, fails to obligation fulfil the as aforementioned duty of disclosure, which may adversely affect the underwriting decisions or premium rate assessment of the Insurer, the Insurer is entitled to terminate this Policy. The said right of termination shall be extinguished if it is not exercised within 30 days from the date which the Insurer is aware of a reason for termination or two years from the this conclusion of Policy. whichever is earlier, or the Insurer will be liable to pay any loss in connection with a claim to which this Policy applies.

If the Policyholder deliberately fails to perform the duty of disclosure, the Insurer shall not be liable to pay the indemnity for any loss or damage to the interest insured occurring or claim first made before the termination of this Policy and the Insurer will not refund the premium. If the Policyholder fails to perform the duty of disclosure due to gross negligence and such failure had a material impact on the occurrence, the Insurer shall not be liable to pay the indemnity for any loss of an occurrence which occurred before the termination of this Policy but the Insurer will refund the premium.

The Insurer is not entitled to cancel this Policy if the Insurer was aware at the time when entering this Policy that the into Policyholder had made any misrepresentations or nondisclosures, and shall be liable to pay loss in connection with a claim to which this Policy applies.

3.2. Changes

Every change materially affecting the facts or circumstances existing at the commencement of this Policy, or at any subsequent renewal date, must be notified to the Insurer in writing immediately after the Insured becomes aware of such change.

The Insured must advise the Insurer in writing of any apparent increase in exposure of the interest insured during the policy period of this Policy. Upon receipt of such advice, the Insurer may, at its sole discretion, increase the insurance premium applicable to this Policy terminate this Policy or immediately. If the Insurer decides to terminate this Policy, the Policyholder will receive a pro rata refund of premium from the Insurer for the unexpired policy period.

The Insurer shall not be liable for any loss resulting from the apparent increase in exposure if the Insured has failed to give the Insurer notice of such apparent increase in exposure as described above.

3.3. Claim Handling

In the event of any loss or damage likely to give rise to a claim under this Policy it is essential that the Insurer and all relevant third parties are notified immediately, and a claim form, if required, completed and submitted as soon as possible.

The Insurer will make а determination as to its coverage position on any claim in a timely manner after receiving the claim request and full supporting documents. If Insurer the determines that the supporting documents incomplete are according to this Policy, the Insurer will, in a timely manner and at one time, notify the Insured to supplement such documents. Should the circumstances of the claim be complicated to the extent that the Insurer is unable to determine its coverage position within 30 days of receiving full information, then the Insurer shall advise the Insured of a reasonable longer period required, and notify the Insured in a timely manner once the determination is made within that period. For any claim covered by this Policy, the Insurer shall make the payment within 10 days after the settlement agreement is reached or the period stated in the settlement agreement. If it is determined that such claim is not covered by this Policy, a notice with explanation shall be sent to the Insured within 3 days after our coverage determination is made.

If the final amount of loss cannot be determined within 60 days after the Insurer receives the claim request and full supporting information and materials, the Insurer will advance the payment for the part of loss that may be determined at that time. When the final settlement of loss is determined, the Insurer shall make the payment for any outstanding amount.

3.4. Receipt

The following course of action should be taken upon receipt of any consignment:

- 1. The consignment should be checked for both quantity and condition.
- 2. If this is not possible, then the delivery note should be claused: "Signed for quantity contents unchecked".
- 3. Container seals should be examined to ensure they are intact and that the seal numbers match those shown on the transport document. Any discrepancy must be recorded on the delivery note.

3.5. Damage

1. Any loss or damage found at time of delivery must be recorded on the delivery note.

 $[\]textcircled{C}$ 2016 Chubb. Coverages underwritten by one or more subsidiary companies. Not all coverages available in all jurisdictions. Chubb@, its respective logos and Chubb. Insured.SM are protected trademarks of Chubb.

- 2. Where a full check of the consignment is not possible at the time of delivery it is essential that this is completed without delay.
- 3. Written notification must be given to the carriers within the time limits set out in their contract of carriage.

3.6. Documents

The following documents usually form an essential part of the claim and must be provided to the Insurer:

- 1. Suppliers' invoices to support values and indicate terms of sale.
- 2. Packing lists (where applicable).
- 3. Delivery receipts, landing accounts etc. - as evidence of condition and to establish where any loss occurred.
- 4. Original transit document bill of lading, airwaybill or consignment note as evidence of the contract of carriage.
- Correspondence with carriers, suppliers or other third parties

 holding them liable for any loss, in order that subsequent recoveries can be sought from the responsible party/parties.
- 6. A calculation or estimate of the amount being claimed.
- 7. Original insurance certificate, if issued.
- 8. Any other documentation not detailed above relevant to the shipment, transaction or loss.

Immediately upon notification it is likely that the Insurer will instruct an independent surveyor or investigator to examine the case, with a view to establishing exact circumstances and extent of the loss. This exercise will be effected and concluded with the minimum of delay and at the Insurer's expense.

3.7. Overseas Claims

Where claims are payable abroad the local nominated marine claims settling agent should be contacted. This agent will require similar action and documentation to that detailed above, dependent upon local custom.

3.8. Basis of Valuation

The basis of valuation and/or loss settlement shall be as follows:

- 1. Imports and Exports: Cost, Insurance and Freight plus 10% (up to maximum 20%) plus duty payable, if applicable
- 2. Land Transits and/or FOB and/or similar terms: Invoice price plus all carriage but excluding consequential loss absolutely
- 3. Used Items: Current market value plus all carriage but excluding consequential loss absolutely

3.9. Recoveries

In the event of loss or damage which may result in a claim hereunder, it is hereby noted and agreed that **Chubb Insurance** (China) Company Limited is to undertake such recovery action, as may be appropriate.

the Insured has If been compensated for loss or damage to the interest insured by any third party liable for the same, the Insurer may deduct the corresponding amount from the payment. Where the Insured waives such rights after an occurrence occurs, the Insurer shall not be liable to make any payment for the loss or damage to the interest insured in connection with such occurrence. Any such waiver made without the Insurer's prior consent after the Insurer makes such payment is void. If the Insurer is not able to exercise its rights of recovery as a result of any Insured's intentional act or gross negligence, the Insurer may reduce the payment or request a refund of any such payment made.

3.10. Value Added Tax

If the Insured is registered for Value Added Tax and would be entitled to a credit to Input Tax if it were to incur the cost to which a claim under this Policy relates, the amount of the payment will be reduced by the amount of any input tax credit to which the Insured is or may, in the opinion of the Insurer, be entitled to claim.

Value Added Tax and Input Tax shall have the same meaning as defined under the laws of China as from time to time amended.

The amount of the applicable deductible, if any, is calculated after deduction of the amount of any Input Tax credit that the Insured is or may, in the opinion of the Insurer, be entitled to claim.

3.11. Governing Law and Jurisdiction

This Policy is governed by, and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the People's Republic of China, which is prevailing to any other provisions in the applicable Institute Clauses in case of discrepency. Any dispute arising out of the performance of or in connection with this Policy shall be resolved through consultations in good faith; failing which, the dispute shall be submitted to the arbitration body stated in the Schedule for arbitration. If no arbitration body is specified in the arbitration Schedule or no agreement can be reached for the dispute, such dispute shall be submitted to the exclusive jurisdiction of any competent court in the People's Republic of China.

^{© 2016} Chubb. Coverages underwritten by one or more subsidiary companies. Not all coverages available in all jurisdictions. Chubb®, its respective logos and Chubb. Insured.SM are protected trademarks of Chubb.

1/1/09

Institute Cargo Clauses (A)

RISKS COVERED

Risks

1. This insurance covers all risks of loss of or damage to the subject-matter insured except as excluded by the provisions of Clauses 4, 5, 6 and 7 below.

General Average

2. This insurance covers general average and salvage charges, adjusted or determined according to the contract of carriage and/or the governing law and practice, incurred to avoid or in connection with the avoidance of loss from any cause except those excluded in Clauses 4, 5, 6 and 7 below.

"Both to Blame Collision Clause"

3. This insurance indemnifies the Assured, in respect of any risk insured herein, against liability incurred under any Both to Blame Collision Clause in the contract of carriage. In the event of any claim by carriers under the said Clause, the Assured agree to notify the Insurers who shall have the right, at their own cost and expense, to defend the Assured against such claim.

EXCLUSIONS

- 4. In no case shall this insurance cover
 - 4.1 loss damage or expense attributable to wilful misconduct of the Assured
 - 4.2 ordinary leakage, ordinary loss in weight or volume, or ordinary wear and tear of the subject-matter insured
 - loss damage or expense caused by 4.3insufficiency or unsuitability of packing or preparation of the subject- matter insured to withstand the ordinary incidents of the insured transit where such packing or preparation is carried out by the Assured or their employees or prior to the attachment of this insurance (for the purpose of these Clauses "packing" shall be deemed to include stowage in a container and "employees" shall include independent not contractors)
 - 4.4 loss damage or expense caused by inherent vice or nature of the subjectmatter insured
 - 4.5 loss damage or expense caused by delay, even though the delay be caused by a risk insured against (except expenses payable under Clause 2 above)
 - loss damage or expense caused by 4.6 insolvency or financial default of the owners managers charterers or operators of the vessel where, at the time of loading of the subject-matter insured on board the vessel, the Assured are aware, or in the ordinary course of business should be aware, that such insolvency or financial default could prevent the normal prosecution of the voyage This exclusion shall not apply where the contract of insurance has been assigned to the party claiming hereunder who has bought or agreed to buy the subject-matter insured in good faith under a
 - binding contract
 4.7 loss damage or expense directly or indirectly caused by or arising from the use of any weapon or device employing atomic or nuclear fission and/or fusion or other like reaction or radioactive force or matter.

5. 5.1 In no case shall this insurance cover loss damage or expense arising from

- 5.1.1 unseaworthiness of vessel or craft or unfitness of vessel or craft for the safe carriage of the subject-matter insured, where the Assured are privy to such unseaworthiness or unfitness, at the time the subject-matter insured is loaded therein
- 5.1.2 unfitness of container or conveyance for the safe carriage of the subject-matter insured, where loading therein or thereon is carried out prior to attachment of this insurance or by the Assured or their employees and they are privy to such unfitness at the time of loading.
- 5.2 Exclusion 5.1.1 above shall not apply where the contract of insurance has been assigned to the party claiming hereunder who has bought or agreed to buy the subject-matter insured in good faith under a binding contract.
- 5.3 The Insurers waive any breach of the implied warranties of seaworthiness of the ship and fitness of the ship to carry the subject-matter insured to destination.
- 6. In no case shall this insurance cover loss damage or expense caused by
 - 6.1 war civil war revolution rebellion insurrection, or civil strife arising therefrom, or any hostile act by or against a belligerent power
 - 6.2 capture seizure arrest restraint or detainment (piracy excepted), and the consequences thereof or any attempt thereat

6.3 derelict mines torpedoes bombs or other derelict weapons of war.

- 7. In no case shall this insurance cover loss damage or expense
 - or persons taking part in labour disturbances, riots or civil commotions
 - 7.2 resulting from strikes, lock-outs, labour disturbances, riots or civil commotions
 - 7.3 caused by any act of terrorism being an act of any person acting on behalf of, or in connection with, any organisation which carries out activities directed towards the overthrowing or influencing, by force or violence, of any government whether or not legally constituted
 - 7.4 caused by any person acting from a political, ideological or religious motive.

DURATION

8.

Transit Clause

- 8.1 Subject to Clause 11 below, this insurance attaches from the time the subject-matter insured is first moved in the warehouse or at the place of storage (at the place named in the contract of insurance) for the purpose of the immediate loading into or onto the carrying vehicle or other conveyance for the commencement of transit, continues during the ordinary course of transit and terminates either
 - 8.1.1 on completion of unloading from the carrying vehicle or other conveyance in or at the final warehouse or place of storage at the destination named in the contract of insurance,
 - 8.1.2 on completion of unloading from the carrying vehicle or other

conveyance in or at any other warehouse or place of storage, whether prior to or at the destination named in the contract of insurance, which the Assured or their employees elect to use either for storage other than in the ordinary course of transit or for allocation or distribution, or

- 8.1.3 when the Assured or their employees elect to use any carrying vehicle or other conveyance or any container for storage other than in the ordinary course of transit or
- 8.1.4 on the expiry of 60 days after completion of discharge overside of the subject-matter insured from the oversea vessel at the final port of discharge, whichever shall first occur.
- 8.2 If, after discharge overside from the oversea vessel at the final port of discharge, but prior to termination of this insurance, the subject-matter insured is to be forwarded to a destination other than that to which it is insured, this insurance, whilst remaining subject to termination as provided in Clauses 8.1.1 to 8.1.4, shall not extend beyond the time the subject-matter insured is first moved for the purpose of the commencement of transit to such other destination.
- 8.3 This insurance shall remain in force (subject to termination as provided for in Clauses 8.1.1 to 8.1.4 above and to the provisions of Clause 9 below) during delay beyond the control of the Assured, any deviation, forced discharge, reshipment or transhipment and during any variation of the adventure arising from the exercise of a liberty granted to carriers under the contract of carriage.

Termination of Contract of Carriage

- 9. If owing to circumstances beyond the control of the Assured either the contract of carriage is terminated at a port or place other than the destination named therein or the transit is otherwise terminated before unloading of the subject-matter insured as provided for in Clause 8 above, then this insurance shall also terminate unless prompt notice is given to the Insurers and continuation of cover is requested when this insurance shall remain in force, subject to an additional premium if required by the Insurers, either
 - 9.1 until the subject-matter insured is sold and delivered at such port or place, or, unless otherwise specially agreed, until the expiry of 60 days after arrival of the subject-matter insured at such port or place, whichever shall first occur, Or
 - 9.2 if the subject-matter insured is forwarded within the said period of 60 days (or any agreed extension thereof) to the destination named in the contract of insurance or to any other destination, until terminated in accordance with the provisions of Clause 8 above.

Change of Voyage 10.

10.1 Where, after attachment of this insurance, the destination is changed by the Assured, this must be notified promptly to Insurers for rates and terms to be agreed. Should a loss occur prior to such agreement being obtained cover may be provided but only if cover would have been available at a reasonable commercial market rate on reasonable market terms.

^{© 2016} Chubb. Coverages underwritten by one or more subsidiary companies. Not all coverages available in all jurisdictions. Chubb®, its respective logos and Chubb. Insured.SM are protected trademarks of Chubb.

10.2 Where the subject-matter insured commences the transit contemplated by this insurance (in accordance with Clause 8.1), but, without the knowledge of the Assured or their employees the ship sails for another destination, this insurance will nevertheless be deemed to have attached at commencement of such transit.

CLAIMS Insurable Interest

11.

In order to recover under this 11.1 insurance the Assured must have an insurable interest in the subject-matter insured at the time of the loss.

Subject to Clause 11.1 above, the 11.2 Assured shall be entitled to recover for insured loss occurring during the period covered by this insurance, notwithstanding that the loss occurred before the contract of insurance was concluded, unless the Assured were aware of the loss and the Insurers were not.

Forwarding Charges

12. Where, as a result of the operation of a risk covered by this insurance, the insured transit is terminated at a port or place other than that to which the subject-matter insured is covered under this insurance, the Insurers will reimburse the Assured for any extra charges properly and reasonably incurred in unloading storing and forwarding the subject-matter insured to the destination to which it is insured. This Clause 12, which does not apply to general average or salvage charges, shall be subject to the exclusions contained in Clauses 4, 5, 6 and 7 above, and shall not include charges arising from the fault negligence insolvency or financial default of the Assured or their employees.

Constructive Total Loss

13. No claim for Constructive Total Loss shall be recoverable hereunder unless the subject-matter insured is reasonably abandoned either on account of its actual total loss appearing to be unavoidable or because the cost of recovering, reconditioning and forwarding the subjectmatter insured to the destination to which it is insured would exceed its value on arrival.

Increased Value

14.

14.1 If any Increased Value insurance is effected by the Assured on the subjectmatter insured under this insurance the agreed value of the subject-matter insured shall be deemed to be increased to the total amount insured under this insurance and all Increased Value insurances covering the loss, and liability under this insurance shall be in such proportion as the sum insured under this insurance bears to such total amount insured.

14.2 Where this insurance is on Increased Value the following clause shall apply:

The agreed value of the subject-matter insured shall be deemed to be equal to the total amount insured under the primary insurance and all Increased Value insurances covering the loss and effected on the subject-matter insured by the Assured, and liability under this insurance shall be in such proportion as the sum insured under this insurance bears to such total amount insured.

In the event of claim the Assured shall provide the Insurers with evidence of the amounts insured under all other insurances.

BENEFIT OF INSURANCE

- This insurance 15.
 - 15.1 covers the Assured which includes the person claiming indemnity either as the person by or on whose behalf the contract of insurance was effected or as an assignee,
 - 15.2 shall not extend to or otherwise benefit the carrier or other bailee.In the event of claim the Assured shall provide the Insurers with evidence of the amounts insured under all other insurances.

MINIMISING LOSSES

Duty of Assured

- 16. It is the duty of the Assured and their employees and agents in respect of loss recoverable hereunder
 - 16.1 to take such measures as may be reasonable for the purpose of averting or minimising such loss, and
 - 16.2 to ensure that all rights against carriers, bailees or other third parties are properly preserved and exercised and the Insurers will, in addition to any loss recoverable hereunder, reimburse the Assured for any charges properly and reasonably incurred in pursuance of these duties.

Waiver

17. Measures taken by the Assured or the Insurers with the object of saving, protecting or recovering the subject- matter insured shall not be considered as a waiver or acceptance of abandonment or otherwise prejudice the rights of either party.

AVOIDANCE OF DELAY 18. It is a condition of this insurance that the Assured shall act with reasonable despatch in all circumstances within their control.

LAW AND PRACTICE 19. This insurance is subject to English law and practice.

Note: Where a continuation of cover is requested under Clause 9, or a change of destination is notified under Clause 10, there is an obligation to give prompt notice to the Insurers and the right to such cover is dependent upon compliance with this obligation obligation.

© Copyright: 11/08 - Lloyd's Market Association (LMA) and International Underwriting Association of London (IUA). ČL382 01/01/2009

1/1/09

Institute War Clauses (Cargo) **RISKS COVERED**

Risks

- 1. This insurance covers, except as excluded by the provisions of Clauses 3 and 4 below, loss of or
 - damage to the subject-matter insured caused by 1.1 war civil war revolution rebellion insurrection, or civil strife arising therefrom, or any hostile act by or against a belligerent power
 - 1.2 capture seizure arrest restraint or detainment, arising from risks covered under 1.1 above, and the consequences thereof or any attempt thereat
 - 1.3 derelict mines torpedoes bombs or other derelict weapons of war.

General Average

This insurance covers general average and 2. salvage charges, adjusted or determined according to the contract of carriage and/or the governing law and practice, incurred to avoid or in connection with the avoidance of loss from a risk covered under these Clauses.

EXCLUSIONS

- 3. In no case shall this insurance cover
 - loss damage or expense attributable to 3.1wilful misconduct of the Assured
 - ordinary leakage, ordinary loss in weight 3.2 or volume, or ordinary wear and tear of the subject-matter insured
 - loss damage or expense caused by 3.3 insufficiency or unsuitability of packing or preparation of the subject-matter insured to withstand the ordinary incidents of the insured transit where such packing or preparation is carried out by the Assured or their employees or prior to the attachment of this insurance (for the purpose of these Clauses "packing" shall be deemed to include stowage in a container and "employees" shall not include independent contractors)
 - 3.4 loss damage or expense caused by inherent vice or nature of the subjectmatter insured
 - loss damage or expense caused by delay, 3.5 even though the delay be caused by a risk insured against (except expenses payable under Clause 2 above)
 - loss damage or expense caused by insolvency or financial default of the 3.6 owners managers charterers or operators of the vessel where, at the time of loading of the subject-matter insured on board the vessel, the Assured are aware, or in the ordinary course of business should be aware, that such insolvency or financial default could prevent the normal prosecution of the voyage This exclusion shall not apply where the contract of insurance has been assigned

to the party claiming hereunder who has bought or agreed to buy the subjectmatter insured in good faith under a binding contract

- any claim based upon loss of or 3.7 frustration of the voyage or adventure
- loss damage or expense directly or indirectly caused by or arising from any 3.8 hostile use of any weapon or device employing atomic or nuclear fission and/or fusion or other like reaction or radioactive force or matter.

4.

4.1

- In no case shall this insurance cover loss damage or expense arising from
 - 4.1.1 unseaworthiness of vessel or craft or unfitness of vessel or craft for the safe carriage of the subject-matter insured, where the Assured are privy to such unseaworthiness or unfitness, at the time the subject-matter insured is loaded therein unfitness of container

4.1.2

conveyance for the safe carriage of the subject-matter insured, where loading therein or thereon is carried out

or

- prior to attachment of this insurance or
- the Assured or their by employees and they are privy to

^{© 2016} Chubb. Coverages underwritten by one or more subsidiary companies. Not all coverages available in all jurisdictions. Chubb®, its respective logos and Chubb. Insured.SM are protected trademarks of Chubb.

such unfitness at the time of loading.

- 4.2 Exclusion 4.1.1 above shall not apply where the contract of insurance has been assigned to the party claiming hereunder who has bought or agreed to buy the subject-matter insured in good faith under a binding contract.
- 4.3 The Insurers waive any breach of the implied warranties of seaworthiness of the ship and fitness of the ship to carry the subject-matter insured to destination.

DURATION

Transit Clause 5.

- 5.1 This insurance
 - 5.1.1 attaches only as the subjectmatter insured and as to any part as that part is loaded on an oversea vesseland
 - 5.1.2 terminates, subject to 5.2 and 5.3 below, either as the subjectmatter insured and as to any part as that part is discharged from an oversea vessel at the final port or place of discharge, or on expiry of 15 days counting from midnight of the day of arrival of the vessel at the final port or place of discharge, whichever shall first occur; nevertheless,

subject to prompt notice to the Insurers and to an additional premium, such insurance

- 5.1.3 reattaches when, without having discharged the subject-matter insured at the final port or place of discharge, the vessel sails therefrom, and
- 5.1.4 terminates, subject to 5.2 and 5.3 below, either as the subjectmatter insured and as to any part as that part is thereafter discharged from the vessel at the final (or substituted) port or place of discharge, or on expiry of 15 days counting from midnight of the day of re-arrival of the vessel at the final port or place of discharge or arrival of the vesse at a substituted port or place of discharge, whichever shall first occur.
- If during the insured voyage the oversea 5.2vessel arrives at an intermediate port or place to discharge the subject-matter insured for on-carriage by oversea vessel or by aircraft, or the subject-matter insured is discharged from the vessel at a port or place of refuge, then, subject to 5.3 below and to an additional premium if required, this insurance continues until the expiry of 15 days counting from midnight of the day of arrival of the vessel at such port or place, but thereafter reattaches as the subject-matter insured and as to any part as that part is loaded on an on-carrying oversea vessel or aircraft. During the period of 15 days the insurance remains in force after discharge only whilst the subject-matter insured and as to any part as that part is at such port or place. If the subjectmatter insured is on- carried within the said period of 15 days or if the insurance reattaches as provided in this Clause 5.2 where the on-carriage is by 5.2.1oversea vessel this insurance

continues subject to the terms of these Clauses, or

- 5.2.2 where the on-carriage is by aircraft, the current Institute War Clauses (Air Cargo) (excluding sendings by Post) shall be deemed to form part of the contract of insurance and shall apply to the on-carriage by air.
- 5.3 If the voyage in the contract of carriage is terminated at a port or place other than the destination agreed therein, such port or place shall be deemed the final port of discharge and this insurance terminates in accordance with 5.1.2. If the subjectmatter insured is subsequently reshipped to the original or any other destination, then provided notice is given to the Insurers before the commencement of such further transit and subject to an additional premium, this insurance reattaches
 - 5.3.1 in the case of the subject-matter insured having been discharged, as the subject-matter insured and as to any part as that part is loaded on the on-carrying vessel for the voyage;
 - 5.3.2 in the case of the subject-matter not having been discharged, when the vessel sails from such deemed final port of discharge; thereafter this insurance terminates in accordance with 5.1.4.
- 5.4 The insurance against the risks of mines and derelict torpedoes, floating or submerged, is extended whilst the subject-matter insured or any part thereof is on craft whilst in transit to or from the oversea vessel, but in no case beyond the expiry of 60 days after discharge from the oversea vessel unless otherwise specially agreed by the Insurers.
- 5.5 Subject to prompt notice to Insurers, and to an additional premium if required, this insurance shall remain in force within the provisions of these Clauses during any deviation, or any variation of the adventure arising from the exercise of a liberty granted to carriers under the contract of carriage. (For the purpose of Clause 5
 - "arrival" shall be deemed to mean that the vessel is anchored, moored or otherwise secured at a berth or place within the Harbour Authority area. If such a berth or place is not available, arrival is deemed to have occurred when the vessel first anchors, moors or otherwise secures either at or off the intended port or place of discharge "oversea vessel" shall be deemed to mean a vessel carrying the subject-matter from one port or place to another where such voyage involves a sea passage by that vessel)

Change of Voyage 6.

6.1 Where, after attachment of this insurance, the destination is changed by the Assured, this must be notified promptly to Insurers for rates and terms to be agreed. Should a loss occur prior to such agreement being obtained cover may be provided but only if cover would have been available at a reasonable

commercial market rate on reasonable market terms.

- 6.2 Where the subject-matter insured commences the transit contemplated by this insurance (in accordance with Clause 5.1), but, without the knowledge of the Assured or their employees the ship sails for another destination, this insurance will nevertheless be deemed to have attached at commencement of such transit.
- 7. Anything contained in this contract which is inconsistent with Clauses 3.7, 3.8 or 5 shall, to the extent of such inconsistency, be null and void.

CLAIMS

Insurable Interest 8.

- 8.1 In order to recover under this insurance the Assured must have an insurable interest in the subject- matter insured at the time of the loss.
- 8.2 Subject to Clause 8.1 above, the Assured shall be entitled to recover for insured loss occurring during the period covered by this insurance, notwithstanding that the loss occurred before the contract of insurance was concluded, unless the Assured were aware of the loss and the Insurers were not.

Increased Value

9.

- 9.1 If any Increased Value insurance is effected by the Assured on the subject-matter insured under thisinsurance the agreed value of the subject-matter insured shall be deemed to be increased to the total amount insured under this insurance and all Increased Value insurances covering the loss, and liability under this insurance shall be in such proportion as the sum insured under this insurance bears to such total amount insured. In the event of claim the Assured shall provide the Insurers with evidence of the amounts insured under all other insurances.
- 9.2 Where this insurance is on Increased Value the following clause shall apply: The agreed value of the subject-matter insured shall be deemed to be equal to the total amount insured under the primary insurance and all Increased Value insurances covering the loss and effected on the subject-matter insured by the Assured, and liability under this insurance shall be in such proportion as the sum insured under this insurance bears to such total amount insured. In the event of claim the Assured shall provide the Insurers with evidence of the amounts insured under all other insurances.

BENEFIT OF INSURANCE

10. This insurance 10.1 covers the Assured which includes the person claiming indemnity either as the

- person claiming indemnity either as the person by or on whose behalf the contract of insurance was effected or as an assignee,
- 10.2 shall not extend to or otherwise benefit the carrier or other bailee.

MINIMISING LOSSES

Duty of Assured

11. It is the duty of the Assured and their employees and agents in respect of loss recoverable hereunder

^{© 2016} Chubb. Coverages underwritten by one or more subsidiary companies. Not all coverages available in all jurisdictions. Chubb®, its respective logos and Chubb. Insured.SM are protected trademarks of Chubb.

- 11.1 to take such measures as may be reasonable for the purpose of averting or minimising such loss, and
- 11.2 to ensure that all rights against carriers, bailees or other third parties are properly preserved and exercised and the Insurers will, in addition to any loss recoverable hereunder, reimburse the Assured for any charges properly and reasonably incurred in pursuance of these duties.

Waiver

12. Measures taken by the Assured or the Insurers with the object of saving, protecting or recovering the subject-matter insured shall not be considered as a waiver or acceptance of abandonment or otherwise prejudice the rights of either party.

AVOIDANCE OF DELAY

13. It is a condition of this insurance that the Assured shall act with reasonable despatch in all circumstances within their control.

LAW AND PRACTICE

14. This insurance is subject to English law and practice.

Note: Where a reattachment of cover is requested under Clause 5, or a change of destination is notified under Clause 6, there is an obligation to give prompt notice to the Insurers and the right to such cover is dependent upon compliance with this obligation.

© Copyright: 11/08 - Lloyd's Market Association (LMA) and International Underwriting Association of London (IUA). CL385 01/01/2009

01/01/2009

Institute Strikes Clauses (Cargo) RISKS COVERED

Risks

- This insurance covers, except as excluded by the provisions of Clauses 3 and 4 below, loss of or damage to the subject-matter insured caused by
 - 1.1 strikers, locked-out workmen, or persons taking part in labour disturbances, riots or civil commotions

4.

- 1.2 any act of terrorism being an act of any person acting on behalf of, or in connection with, any organisation which carries out activities directed towards the overthrowing or influencing, by force or violence, of any government whether or not legally constituted
- 1.3 any person acting from a political, ideological or religious motive.

General Average

This insurance covers general average and salvage charges, adjusted or determined according to the contract of carriage and/or the governing law and practice, incurred to avoid or in connection with the avoidance of loss from a risk covered under these Clauses.

EXCLUSIONS

3.

In no case shall this insurance cover

- 3.1 loss damage or expense attributable to wilful misconduct of the Assured
- 3.2 ordinary leakage, ordinary loss in weight or volume, or ordinary wear and tear of the subject-matter insured
- 3.3 loss damage or expense caused by insufficiency or unsuitability of packing or preparation of the subject- matter insured to withstand the ordinary incidents of the insured transit where such packing or preparation is carried

out by the Assured or their employees or prior to the attachment of this insurance (for the purpose of this Clause 3.3 "packing" shall be deemed to include stowage in a container and "employees" shall not include independent contractors)

- 3.4 loss damage or expense caused by inherent vice or nature of the subject-matter insured
- 3.5 loss damage or expense caused by delay, even though the delay be caused by a risk insured against (except expenses payable under Clause 2 above)
- 3.6 loss damage or expense caused by insolvency or financial default of the owners managers charterers or operators of the vessel where, at the time of loading of the subject-matter insured on board the vessel, the Assured are aware, or in the ordinary course of business should be aware, that such insolvency or financial default could prevent the normal prosecution of the voyage

This exclusion shall not apply where the contract of insurance has been assigned to the party claiming hereunder who has bought or agreed to buy the subjectmatter insured in good faith under a binding contract.

- 3.7 loss damage or expense arising from the absence shortage or withholding of labour of any description whatsoever resulting from any strike, lockout, labour disturbance, riot or civil commotion
- 3.8 any claim based upon loss of or frustration of the voyage or adventure
- 3.9 loss damage or expense directly or indirectly caused by or arising from the use of any weapon or device employing atomic or nuclear fission and/or fusion or other like reaction or radioactive force or matter
- 3.10 loss damage or expense caused by war civil war revolution rebellion insurrection, or civil strife arising therefrom, or any hostile act by or against a belligerent power.
- 4.1 In no case shall this insurance cover loss damage or expense arising from
 - 4.1.1 unseaworthiness of vessel or craft or unfitness of vessel or craft for the safe carriage of the subject-matter insured, where the Assured are privy to such unseaworthiness or unfitness, at the time the subject-matter insured is loaded therein
 - 4.1.2 unfitness of container or conveyance for the safe carriage of the subject-matter insured, where loading therein or thereon is carried out prior to attachment of this insurance or by the Assured or their employees and they are privy to such unfitness at the time of loading.
- 4.2 Exclusion 4.1.1 above shall not apply where the contract of insurance has been assigned to the party claiming hereunder who has bought or agreed to buy the subject-matter insured in good faith under a binding contract.
- 4.3 The Insurers waive any breach of the implied warranties of seaworthiness of the ship and fitness of the ship to carry the subject-matter insured to destination.

DURATION Transit Clause

5.

- 5.1 Subject to Clause 8 below, this insurance attaches from the time the subject-matter insured is first moved in the warehouse or at the place of storage (at the place named in the contract of insurance) for the purpose of the immediate loading into or onto the carrying vehicle or other conveyance for the commencement of transit, continues during the ordinary course of transit and terminates either
 - 5.1.1 on completion of unloading from the carrying vehicle or other conveyance in or at the final warehouse or place of storage at the destination named in the contract of insurance,
 - 5.1.2 on completion of unloading from the carrying vehicle or other conveyance in or at any other warehouse or place of storage, whether prior to or at the destination named in the contract of insurance, which the Assured or their employees elect to use either for storage other than in the ordinary course of transit or for allocation or distribution, or
 - 5.1.3 when the Assured or their employees elect to use any carrying vehicle or other conveyance or anycontainer for storage other than in the ordinary course of transit or
 - 5.1.4 on the expiry of 60 days after completion of discharge overside of the subject-matter insured from the oversea vessel at the final port of discharge,
- 5.2 If, after discharge overside from the oversea vessel at the final port of discharge, but prior to termination of this insurance, the subject-matter insured is to be forwarded to a destination other than that to which it is insured, this insurance, whilst remaining subject to termination as provided in Clauses 5.1.1 to 5.1.4, shall not extend beyond the time the subject-matter insured is first moved for the purpose of the commencement of transit to such other destination.
- This insurance shall remain in force 5.3 (subject to termination as provided for in Clauses 5.1.1 to 5.1.4 above and to the provisions of Clause 6 below) during delay beyond the control of the Assured, any deviation, forced discharge, reshipment or transhipment and during any variation of the adventure arising from the exercise of a liberty granted to carriers under the contract of carriage.whichever shall first occur.

Termination of Contract of Carriage

6. If owing to circumstances beyond the control of the Assured either the contract of carriage is terminated at a port or place other than the destination named therein or the transit is otherwise terminated before unloading of the subject-matter insured as provided for in Clause 5 above, then this insurance shall also terminate unless prompt notice is given to the Insurers and continuation of cover is requested when this insurance shall remain in force, subject to an additional premium if required by the Insurers, either

^{© 2016} Chubb. Coverages underwritten by one or more subsidiary companies. Not all coverages available in all jurisdictions. Chubb®, its respective logos and Chubb. Insured.SM are protected trademarks of Chubb.

- until the subject-matter insured is sold 6.1 and delivered at such port or place, or, unless otherwise specially agreed, until the expiry of 60 days after arrival of the subject-matter insured at such port or place, whichever shall first occur, Or
- if the subject-matter 6.2 insured forwarded within the said period of 60 days (or any agreed extension thereof) to the destination named in the contract of insurance or to any other until terminated in destination. accordance with the provisions of Clause 5 above.

Change of Voyage

- 7.1 Where. after attachment of this insurance, the destination is changed by the Assured, this must be notified promptly to Insurers for rates and terms to be agreed. Should a loss occur prior to such agreement being obtained cover may be provided but only if cover would have been available at a reasonable commercial market rate on reasonable market terms.
- Where the subject-matter 7.2 insured commences the transit contemplated by this insurance (in accordance with Clause 5.1), but, without the knowledge of the Assured or their employees the ship sails for another destination, this insurance will nevertheless be deemed to have attached at commencement of such transit.

CLAIMS Insurable Interest

8.

9.

- 8.1 In order to recover under this insurance the Assured must have an insurable interest in the subject- matter insured at the time of the loss.
- Subject to Clause 8.1 above, the Assured shall be entitled to recover for insured 8.2 loss occurring during the period covered by this insurance, notwithstanding that the loss occurred before the contract of insurance was concluded, unless the Assured were aware of the loss and the Insurers were not.

Increased Value

If any Increased Value insurance is 9.1 effected by the Assured on the subjectmatter insured under this insurance the value of the subject-matter agreed insured shall be deemed to be increased to the total amount insured under this insurance and all Increased Value insurances covering the loss, and liability under this insurance shall be in such proportion as the sum insured under this insurance bears to such total amount insured.

In the event of claim the Assured shall provide the Insurers with evidence of the amounts insured under all other insurances.

9.2 Where this insurance is on Increased Value the following clause shall apply: The agreed value of the subject-matter insured shall be deemed to be equal to the total amount insured under the primary insurance and all Increased Value insurances covering the loss and effected on the subject-matter insured by the Assured, and liability under this insurance shall be in such

proportion as the sum insured under this insurance bears to such total amount insured.

In the event of claim the Assured shall provide the Insurers with evidence of the amounts insured under all other insurances.

BENEFIT OF INSURANCE

10. This insurance

- 10.1 covers the Assured which includes the person claiming indemnity either as the person by or on whose behalf the contract of insurance was effected or as an assignee.
- 10.2 shall not extend to or otherwise benefit the carrier or other bailee. In the event of claim the Assured shall provide the Insurers with evidence of the
 - amounts insured under all other insurances.

MINIMISING LOSSES Duty of Assured

11. It is the duty of the Assured and their employees and agents in respect of loss recoverable hereunder

- 11.1 to take such measures as may be reasonable for the purpose of averting or minimising
 - such loss, and 11.2 to ensure that all rights against carriers, bailees or other third parties are properly preserved and exercised and
 - the Insurers will, in addition to any loss recoverable hereunder, reimburse the Assured for any charges properly and reasonably incurred in pursuance of these duties.

Waiver

 Waber
 12. Measures taken by the Assured or the Insurers with the object of saving, protecting or recovering the subject- matter insured shall not be considered as a waiver or acceptance of abandonment or otherwise prejudice the rights of either party.

AVOIDANCE OF DELAY

13. It is a condition of this insurance that the Assured shall act with reasonable despatch in all circumstances within their control.

LAW AND PRACTICE

14. This insurance is subject to English law and practice.

Note: Where a continuation of cover is requested under Clause 6, or a change of destination is notified under Clause 7, there is an obligation to give prompt notice to the Insurers and the right to such cover is dependent upon compliance with this obligation.

© Copyright: 11/08 - Lloyd's Market Association (LMA) and International Underwriting Association of London (IUA). ČL386 01/01/2009

01/01/2001

Institute Classification Clause

- **QUALIFYING VESSELS** This insurance and the marine transit rates as agreed in the policy or open cover apply only to cargoes and/or interests carried
 - bv mechanically self-propelled vessels of steel construction classed with a Classification Society which is: a Member or Associate Member of the 1.1.
 - International Association of Classification Societies (IACS), or

a National Flag Society as defined in 1.2 Clause 4 below, but only where the vessel is engaged exclusively in the coastal trading of that nation (including trading on an inter-island route within an archipelago of which that nation forms part).

Cargoes and/or interests carried by vessels not classed as above must be notified promptly to underwriters for rates and conditions to be agreed. Should a loss occur prior to such agreement being obtained cover may be provided but only if cover would have been available at a reasonable commercial market rate on reasonable commercial market terms.

AGE LIMITATION

2. Cargoes and/or interests carried by Qualifying Vessels (as defined above) which exceed the following age limits will be insured on the policy or open cover conditions subject to an additional premium to be agreed.

Bulk or combination carriers over 10 years of age or other vessels over 15 years of age unless they:

- have been used for the carriage of general 2.1. cargo on an established and regular pattern of trading between a range of specified ports, and do not exceed 25 years of age, or
- were constructed as containerships, 2.2. vehicle carriers or double-skin openhatch gantry crane vessels (OHGCs) and have been continuously used as such on an established and regular pattern of trading between a range of specified ports, and do not exceed 30 years of age.

CRAFT CLAUSE

3. The requirements of this Clause do not apply to any craft used to load or unload the vessel within the port area.

NATIONAL FLAG SOCIETY

4. A National Flag Society is a Classification Society which is domiciled in the same country as the owner of the vessel in question which must also operate under the flag of that country.

PROMPT NOTICE

5. Where this Insurance requires the assured to give prompt notice to the Underwriters, the right to cover is dependent upon compliance with that obligation.

LAW AND PRACTICE

6. This insurance is subject to English law and practice.

For a current list of IACS Members and Associate Members please refer to the IACS website at www.iacs.org.uk

CL 354 Sold by Witherby & Co. Ltd., London

Cargo ISM Endorsement

Applicable to shipments on board Ro-Ro passenger ferries.

- Applicable with effect from 1 July 1998 to shipments on board:
- passenger vessels transporting more than 12 1. passenger and
- 2 oil tankers, chemical tankers, gas carriers, bulk carriers and cargo high speed craft of 500 gt or more

Applicable with effect from 1 July 2002 to shipments on board all other cargo ships and mobile offshore drilling units of 500 gt or more.

In no case shall this insurance cover loss, damage or expense where the subject matter insured is carried

^{© 2016} Chubb. Coverages underwritten by one or more subsidiary companies. Not all coverages available in all jurisdictions. Chubb®, its respective logos and Chubb. Insured.SM are protected trademarks of Chubb.

by a vessel that is not ISM Code certified or whose owners or operators do not hold an ISM Code Document of Compliance when, at the time of loading of the subject matter insured on board the vessel, the Assured were aware, or in the ordinary course of business should have been aware either :

1. that such vessel was not certified in accordance with the ISM Code, or

2. that a current Document of Compliance was not held by her owners or operators as required under the SOLAS Convention 1974 as amended.

This exclusion shall not apply where this insurance has been assigned to the party claiming hereunder who has bought or agreed to buy the subject matter insured in good faith under a binding contract.

Cargo ISM Forwarding Charges Clause

(For use only with JCC Cargo ISM Endorsement JC98/019)

In consideration of an additional premium to be agreed, this insurance is extended to reimburse the assured, up to the limit of the sum insured for the voyage, for any extra charges properly and reasonably incurred in unloading, storing and forwarding the subject-matter to the destination to which it is insured hereunder following release of cargo from a vessel arrested or detained at or diverted to any other port or place (other than intended port of destination) where the voyage is terminated due either

- to such vessel not being certified in accordance with the ISM Cod, or
- to a current Document of Compliance not being 2. held by her owner or operators as required under the SOLAS Convention 1974 as amended.

This clause, which does not apply to General Average or Salvage or Salvage Charges, is subject to all other terms conditions and exclusions in the policy and to JCC Cargo Endorsement JC 98/019 4.6.98

Inland Transit (All risks) Clause

Warranted held covered against All Risks of loss and/or damage irrespective of percentage whilst in transit by road and/or rail, and/or river, canal or inland waterway including transit by craft and/or ferry within People's Republic of China.

Risk to commence from the time of despatch from the Insured's Warehouse and/or store and/or premises at the place named in the policy for the commencement of the transit and to expire on delivery to the consignee's premises at the destination named in the policy or after seven days from the time of arrival of the conveyance at destination, whichever, may first occur.

Exclusions

In no case shall this Insurance Cover:

- loss damage or expense attributable to wilful misconduct of the Assured or caused by wilful 1. acts or wilful negligence or infidelity on the part of the Assured's employees or its representatives
- ordinary leakage, ordinary loss in weight or volume, or ordinary wear and tear of the subject-matter insured.
- loss damage or expense caused by insufficiency or unsuitability of packing or preparation of the subject-matter insured (for this purpose "packing" shall be deemed to include stowage in a container or liftvan but-only when such stowage is carried out prior to attachment of this insurance or by the Assured or their servants)
- loss damage or expense caused by atmospheric 4. or climatic conditions, wear and tear, gradual deterioration, moths, vermin or inherent vice or the nature of the subject-matter insured

- loss damage or expense proximately caused by delay, loss of market, loss of use and consequential loss
- 6. loss damage or expense arising from unfitness of conveyance container or liftvan for the safe carriage of the subject-matter insured where the Assured or their servants are privy to such unfitness at the time the subject-matter insured is loaded therein.
- loss damage or expense arising out of mechanical and/or electrical and/or electronic 7. derangement unless caused by an insured peril
- 8. loss damage or expense arising as the consequence of hostilities or warlike operations (whether there be a declaration of war or not). civil war, revolution, rebellion, insurrection, civil strife arising therefrom, or hijack.
- loss damage or expense caused by strikers, 9. locked out workmen or persons taking part in labour disturbances, riots or civil commotions
- 10. loss damage or expense caused by confiscation, nationalisation, requisition or destruction by order of any Government or Public Authority

Warranted free from liability for loss of or damage to goods whilst in the custody or care of any carrier or other bailee who may be liable for such loss or damage but only to the extent of such carrier's or bailee's liability and it is the duty of the Assured to ensure that all rights against carriers or bailees are properly preserved and exercised. In particular, the Assured is required to lodge a claim, provisional or otherwise, in writing against such carrier or bailee concerned within the period prescribed by the contract of carriage.

1/1/09

Institute Cargo Clauses (Air) (excluding sendings by Post) **RISKS COVERED**

Risks

This insurance covers all risks of loss of or damage to the subject-matter insured except as excluded by the provisions of Clauses 3, 4 and 5 below.

Salvage Charges 2. This insurance covers salvage charges incurred to avoid or in connection with the avoidance of loss from any cause except those excluded in Clauses 3, 4 and 5 below.

EXCLUSIONS

3. In no case shall this insurance cover

- loss damage or expense attributable to wilful misconduct of the Assured 3.1
- 3.2 ordinary leakage, ordinary loss in weight or volume, or ordinary wear and tear of the subject-matter insured
- loss damage or expense caused by 3.3insufficiency or unsuitability of packing or preparation of the subject-matter insured to withstand the ordinary incidents of the insured transit where such packing or preparation is carried out by the Assured or their employees or prior to the attachment of this insurance (for the purpose of these Clauses "packing" shall be deemed to include stowage in a container and "employees' shall include independent not contractors)
- loss damage or expense caused by 3.4 inherent vice or nature of the subjectmatter insured
- loss damage or expense arising from 3.5unfitness of aircraft conveyance or container for the safe carriage of the subject-matter insured, where loading therein or thereon is carried out prior to attachment of this insurance or by the

Assured or their employees and they are privy to such unfitness at the time of loading. This exclusion shall not apply where the contract of insurance has been assigned to the party claiming hereunder who has bought or agreed to buy the subject-matter insured in good faith under a binding contract.

- loss damage or expense caused by delay, 3.6 even though the delay be caused by a risk insured against
- loss damage or expense caused by insolvency or financial default of the 3.7 owners managers charterers or operators of the aircraft where, at the time of loading of the subject-matter insured on board the aircraft, the Assured are aware, or in the ordinary course of business should be aware, that such insolvency or financial default could prevent the normal prosecution of the transit This exclusion shall not apply where the contract of insurance has been assigned to the party claiming hereunder who has bought or agreed to buy the subjectmatter insured in good faith under a binding contract
- loss damage or expense directly or 3.8 indirectly caused by or arising from the use of any weapon or device employing atomic or nuclear fission and/or fusion or other like reaction or radioactive force or matter.
- In no case shall this insurance cover loss 4. damage or expense caused by
 - war civil war revolution rebellion insurrection, or civil strife arising 4.1therefrom, or any hostile act by or against a belligerent power
 - capture seizure arrest restraint or detainment (piracy excepted), and the consequences thereof or any attempt 4.2thereat
 - derelict mines torpedoes bombs or other 4.3 derelict weapons of war.
- 5. In no case shall this insurance cover loss damage or expense
 - 5.1 caused by strikers, locked-out workmen, or persons taking part in labour disturbances, riots or civil commotions
 - resulting from strikes, lock-outs, labour 5.2disturbances, riots or civil commotions
 - caused by any act of terrorism being an 5.3 act of any person acting on behalf of, or in connection with, any organisation which carries out activities directed towards the overthrowing or influencing, by force or violence, of any government whether or not legally constituted
 - caused by any person acting from a political, ideological or religious motive. 5.4

DURATION

Transit Clause 6.

> Subject to Clause 9 below, this insurance 6.1 attaches from the time the subject-matter insured is first moved in the warehouse, premises or at the place of storage (at the place named in the contract of insurance) for the purpose of the immediate loading into or onto the carrying or other conveyance for the vehicle commencement of transit,

continues during the ordinary course of transit and terminates either

on completion of unloading from 6.1.1 the carrying vehicle or other conveyance in or at the final

^{© 2016} Chubb. Coverages underwritten by one or more subsidiary companies. Not all coverages available in all jurisdictions. Chubb®, its respective logos and Chubb. Insured.SM are protected trademarks of Chubb.

warehouse, premises or place of storage at the destination named in the contract of insurance,

- on completion of unloading from 6.1.2 the carrying vehicle or other conveyance in or at any other warehouse, premises or place of storage, whether prior to or at the destination named in the contract of insurance, which the Assured or their employees elect to use either for storage other than in the ordinary course of transit or for allocation or distribution. or
- when the Assured or their employees elect to use any 6.1.3 vehicle other carrying or conveyance or any container for other than in the storage ordinary course of transit, or
- on the expiry of 30 days after 6.1.4 completion of unloading of the subject-matter insured from the aircraft at the final place of discharge, whichever shall first occur.
- 6.2 If, after unloading from the aircraft at the final place of discharge, but prior to termination of this insurance, the subject-matter insured is to be forwarded to a destination other than that to which it is insured, this insurance, whilst remaining subject to termination as provided in Clauses 6.1.1 to 6.1.4, shall not extend beyond the time the subject-matter insured is first moved for the purpose of the commencement of transit to such other destination.
- 6.3 This insurance shall remain in force (subject to termination as provided for in Clauses 6.1.1 to 6.1.4 above and to the provisions of Clause 7 below) during delay beyond the control of the Assured, any deviation, forced discharge, reshipment or transhipment and during any variation of the adventure arising from the exercise of a liberty granted to the air carriers under the contract of carriage

Termination of Contract of Carriage

- If owing to circumstances beyond the control of the Assured either the contract of carriage is terminated at
 - a place other than the destination named therein or the transit is otherwise terminated before unloading of the subject-matter insured as provided for in Clause 6 above, then this insurance shall also terminate unless prompt notice is given to the Insurers and continuation of cover is requested when this insurance shall remain in force, subject to an additional premium if required by the Insurers, either
 - until the subject-matter insured is sold 7.1and delivered at such place, or, unless otherwise specially agreed, until the expiry of 30 days after arrival of the subjectmatter insured at such place, whichever shall first occur, Or
 - 7.2 if the subject-matter insured is forwarded within the said period of 30 days (or any agreed extension thereof) to the destination named in the contract of insurance or to any other destination, until terminated in accordance with the provisions of Clause 6 above.

Change of Transit

8.1 Where, after attachment of this insurance, the destination is changed by the Assured, this must be notified promptly to Insurers for rates and terms to be agreed. Should a loss occur prior to such agreement being obtained cover may be provided but only if cover would have been available at a reasonable commercial market rate on reasonable market terms.

8.2 Where the subject-matter insured commences the transit contemplated by this insurance (in accordance with Clause 6.1), but, without the knowledge of the Assured or their employees the aircraft leaves for another destination, this insurance will nevertheless be deemed to have attached at commencement of such transit.

CLAIMS

Insurable Interest

- In order to recover under this insurance the 9.1 Assured must have an insurable interest in the subject- matter insured at the time of the loss.
- 9.2 Subject to Clause 9.1 above, the Assured shall be entitled to recover for insured loss occurring during the period covered by this insurance, notwithstanding that the loss occurred before the contract of insurance was concluded, unless the Assured were aware of the loss and the Insurers were not.

Forwarding Charges

10. Where, as a result of the operation of a risk covered by this insurance, the insured transit is terminated at a place other than that to which the subject-matter insured is covered under this insurance, the Insurers will reimburse the Assured for any extra charges properly and reasonably incurred in unloading storing and forwarding the subject-matter insured to the destination to which it is insured.

This Clause 10, which does not apply to salvage charges, shall be subject to the exclusions contained in Clauses 3, 4 and 5 above, and shall not include charges arising from the fault negligence insolvency or financial default of the Assured or their employees.

Constructive Total Loss

 Constructive Total Loss
 11. No claim for Constructive Total Loss shall be recoverable hereunder unless the subject-matter insured is reasonably abandoned either on account of its actual total loss appearing to be unavoidable or because the cost of recovering, reconditioning and forwarding the subject-matter insured to the destination to which it is insured would exceed its value on arrival.

Increased Value 12.

12.1 If any Increased Value insurance is effected by the Assured on the subject-matter insured under this insurance the agreed value of the subject-matter insured shall be deemed to be increased to the total amount insured under this insurance and all Increased Value insurances covering the loss, and liability under this insurance shall be in such proportion as the sum insured under this insurance bears to such total amount insured.

In the event of claim the Assured shall provide the Insurers with evidence of the amounts insured under all other insurances.

12.2 Where this insurance is on Increased Value the following clause shall apply:

The agreed value of the subject-matter insured shall be deemed to be equal to the total amount insured under the primary insurance and all Increased Value insurances covering the loss and effected on the subject-matter insured by the Assured, and liability under this insurance shall be in such proportion as the sum insured under this insurance bears to such total amount insured.

In the event of claim the Assured shall provide the Insurers with evidence of the amounts insured under all other insurances.

BENEFIT OF INSURANCE

- 13. This insurance 13.1 covers the Assured which includes the
 - person claiming indemnity either as the person by or on whose behalf the contract of insurance was effected or as an assignee,
 - 13.2 shall not extend to or otherwise benefit the carrier or other bailee.

MINIMISING LOSSES

Duty of Assured

- 14. It is the duty of the Assured and their employees and agents in respect of loss recoverable hereunder
 - 14.1 to take such measures as may be reasonable for the purpose of averting or minimising such loss, and
 - to ensure that all rights against carriers, 14.2 bailees or other third parties are properly preserved and exercised and the Insurers will, in addition to any loss recoverable hereunder, reimburse the Assured for any charges properly and reasonably incurred in pursuance of these duties.

Waiver

15. Measures taken by the Assured or the Insurers with the object of saving, protecting or recovering the subject-matter insured shall not be considered as a waiver or acceptance of abandonment or otherwise prejudice the rights of either party.

AVOIDANCE OF DELAY

16. It is a condition of this insurance that the Assured shall act with reasonable despatch in all circumstances within their control.

LAW AND PRACTICE

This insurance is subject to English law and 17. practice.

Note: Where a continuation of cover is requested under Clause 7, or a change of destination is notified under Clause 8, there is an obligation to give prompt notice to the Insurers and the right to such cover is dependent upon compliance with this obligation.

© Copyright: 12/08 - Lloyd's Market Association (LMA) and International Underwriting Association of London (IUA). CL387 01/01/2009

1/1/09

Institute War Clauses (Air Cargo) (excluding sendings by Post) **RISKS COVERED**

Risks

1.

- This insurance covers, except as excluded by the provisions of Clause 3 below, loss of or damage to the subject-matter insured caused by
- war civil war revolution rebellion insurrection, or civil strife arising therefrom, or any hostile act by or against a belligerent power
- capture seizure arrest restraint or detainment, arising from risks covered under 1.1 above, and the consequences thereof or any attempt thereat
- derelict mines torpedoes bombs or other 1.3. derelict weapons of war.

Salvage Charges

This insurance covers salvage charges, incurred to avoid or in connection with the avoidance of loss from any cause except those excluded in Clause 3 below.

EXCLUSIONS

^{© 2016} Chubb. Coverages underwritten by one or more subsidiary companies. Not all coverages available in all jurisdictions. Chubb®, its respective logos and Chubb. Insured.SM are protected trademarks of Chubb.

- In no case shall this insurance cover
 - loss damage or expense attributable to 3.1 wilful misconduct of the Assured
 - 3.2 ordinary leakage, ordinary loss in weight or volume, or ordinary wear and tear of the subject-matter insured
 - loss damage or expense caused by 3.3 insufficiency or unsuitability of packing or preparation of the subject-matter insured to withstand the ordinary incidents of the insured transit where such packing or preparation is carried out by the Assured or their employees or prior to the attachment of this insurance (for the purpose of these Clauses "packing" shall be deemed to include stowage in a container and "employees" shall not include independent contractors)
 - loss damage or expense caused by inherent vice or nature of the subject-3.4matter insured
 - 3.5 loss damage or expense arising from unfitness of aircraft conveyance or container for the safe carriage of the subject-matter insured, where loading therein or thereon is carried out prior to attachment of this insurance or by the Assured or their employees and they are privy to such unfitness at the time of loading. This exclusion shall not apply where the contract of insurance has been assigned to the party claiming hereunder who has bought or agreed to buy the subject-matter insured in good faith under a binding contract.
 - loss damage or expense caused by delay, 3.6 even though the delay be caused by a risk insured against
 - damage or expense caused by loss 3.7 insolvency or financial default of the owners managers charterers or operators of the aircraft where, at the time of loading of the subject-matter insured on board the aircraft, the Assured are aware, or in the ordinary course of business should be aware, that such insolvency or financial default could prevent the normal could prevent prosecution of the transit.

This exclusion shall not apply where the contract of insurance has been assigned to the party claiming hereunder who has bought or agreed to buy the subject-matter insured in good faith under a binding contract.

- any claim based upon loss of or frustration 3.8 of the transit or adventure
- loss damage or expense directly or 3.9 indirectly caused by or arising from any hostile use of any weapon or device employing atomic or nuclear fission and/or fusion or other like reaction or radioactive force or matter.

DURATION Transit Clause 4.

4.1 This insurance

- attaches only as the subject-4.1.1 matter insured and as to any part as that part is loaded on the aircraft for the commencement of the air transit insured and
- terminates, subject to 4.2 and 4.3 4.1.2 below, either as the subjectmatter insured and as to any part as that part is discharged from the aircraft at the final place of discharge or on expiry of 15 days counting from midnight of the day of arrival of the aircraft at the final place of

discharge, whichever shall first occur; nevertheless, subject to prompt notice to the Insurers and to an additional premium, such insurance

- when, reattaches without 4.1.3 having discharged the subjectmatter insured at the final place of discharge, the aircraft departs therefrom, and
- terminates, subject to 4.2 and 4.3 4.1.4 below, either as the subject-matter insured and as to any part as that part is thereafter discharged from the aircraft at the final (or substituted) place of discharge, or on expiry of 15 days counting from midnight of the day of re-arrival of the aircraft at the final placeof discharge or arrival of the aircraft at a substituted place of discharge, whichever shall first occur.
- 4.2 If during the insured transit the aircraft arrives at an intermediate place to discharge the subject- matter insured for on-carriage by aircraft or oversea vessel, then, subject to 4.3 below and to an additional premium if required, this insurance continues until the expiry of 15 days counting from midnight of the day of arrival of the aircraft at such place, but thereafter reattaches as the subject-matter insured and as to any part as that part is loaded on an on-carrying aircraft or oversea vessel. During the period of 15 oversea vessel. During the period of 15 days the insurance remains in force after discharge only whilst the subject-matter insured and as to any part as that part is at such intermediate place. If the subject-matter insured is on-carried within the said period of 15 days or if the insurance reattaches as provided in this Clause 4.2 4.2.1 where the on-carriage is by aircraft this insurance continues subject to the terms of these Clauses, or 4.2.2 where the on-carriage is by oversea 4.2.1

where the on-carriage is by oversea vessel, the current Institute War Clauses (Cargo) shall be deemed to form part of the contract of insurance and shall apply to the on-carriage by sea.

- 4.3 If the air transit in the contract of carriage is terminated at a place other than the destination agreed therein, that place shall be deemed to be the final place of discharge and this insurance terminates in accordance with 4.1.2. If the subjectmatter insured is subsequently consigned to the original or any other destination, then, provided notice is given to the Insurers before the commencement of such further transit and subject to an additional premium, this insurance reattaches
 - 4.3.1 in the case of the subject-matter insured having been discharged, as the subject-matter insured and as to any part as that part is loaded on the on-carrying aircraft for the transit:
 - 4.3.2 in the case of the subject-matter insured not having been discharged, when the aircraft departs from such deemed final place of discharge; thereafter this insurance terminates in accordance with 4.1.4.
- Subject to prompt notice to Insurers, and 4.4 to an additional premium if required, this insurance shall remain in force within the

provisions of these Clauses during any deviation, or any variation of the adventure arising from the exercise of a liberty granted to the air carriers under the contract of carriage.

- (For the purpose of Clause 4
- "oversea vessel" shall be deemed to mean a vessel carrying the subject-matter from one port or place to another where such voyage involves a sea passage by that vessel)

Change of Transit

5.

- Where, after attachment of this insurance, 5.1 the destination is changed by the Assured, this must be notified promptly to Insurers for rates and terms to be agreed. Should a loss occur prior to such agreement being obtained cover may be provided but only if cover would have been available at a reasonable commercial market rate on reasonable market terms.
- Where the subject-matter insured 5.2commences the transit contemplated by this insurance (in accordance with Clause 4.1), but, without the knowledge of the Assured or their employees the aircraft leaves for another destination, this insurance will nevertheless be deemed to have attached at commencement of such transit.
- Anything contained in this contract which is 6. inconsistent with Clauses 3.8, 3.9 or 4 shall, to the extent of such inconsistency, be null and void.

CLAIMS

7.

Insurable Interest

- In order to recover under this insurance 7.1 the Assured must have an insurable interest in the subject-matter insured at the time of the loss.
- Subject to Clause 7.1 above, the Assured 7.2 shall be entitled to recover for insured loss occurring during the period covered by this insurance, notwithstanding that the loss occurred before the contract of insurance was concluded, unless the Assured were aware of the loss and the Insurers were not.

Increased Value 8.

8.1 If any Increased Value insurance is effected by the Assured on the subjectmatter insured under this insurance the agreed value of the subject-matter insured shall be deemed to be increased to the total amount insured under this insurance and all Increased Value insurances covering the loss, and liability under this insurance shall be in such proportion as the sum insured under this insurance bears to such total amount insured.

In the event of claim the Assured shall provide the Insurers with evidence of the amounts insured under all other insurances.

- 8.2 Where this insurance is on Increased Value the following clause shall apply:
 - The agreed value of the subject-matter insured shall be deemed to be equal to the total amount insured under the primary insurance and all Increased insurances covering the los Value loss and effected on the subject-matter insured by the Assured, and liability under this insurance shall be in such proportion as

4.2.2

^{© 2016} Chubb. Coverages underwritten by one or more subsidiary companies. Not all coverages available in all jurisdictions. Chubb®, its respective logos and Chubb. Insured.SM are protected trademarks of Chubb.

the sum insured under this insurance bears to such total amount insured.

In the event of claim the Assured shall provide the Insurers with evidence of the amounts insured under all other insurances.

BENEFIT OF INSURANCE

- 9. This insurance
 - 9.1 covers the Assured which includes the person claiming indemnity either as the person by or on whose behalf the contract of insurance was effected or as an assignee,
 - 9.2 shall not extend to or otherwise benefit the carrier or other bailee.

MINIMISING LOSSES

Duty of Assured

- 10. It is the duty of the Assured and their employees and agents in respect of loss recoverable hereunder
 - 10.1 to take such measures as may be reasonable for the purpose of averting or minimising such loss, and
 - 10.2 to ensure that all rights against carriers, bailees or other third parties are properly preserved and exercised and the Insurers will, in addition to any loss recoverable hereunder, reimburse the Assured for any charges properly and reasonably incurred in pursuance of these duties.

Waiver

11. Measures taken by the Assured or the Insurers with the object of saving, protecting or recovering the subject-matter insured shall not be considered as a waiver or acceptance of abandonment or otherwise prejudice the rights of either

AVOIDANCE OF DELAY

12. It is a condition of this insurance that the Assured shall act with reasonable despatch in all circumstances within their control.

LAW AND PRACTICE

- 13. This insurance is subject to English law and practice.
- Note: Where a reattachment of cover is requested under Clause 4, or a change of destination is notified under Clause 5, there is an obligation to give prompt notice to the Insurers and the right to such cover is dependent upon compliance with this obligation.

© Copyright: 12/08 - Lloyd's Market Association (LMA) and International Underwriting Association of London (IUA). CL388 01/01/2009

1/1/09

Institute Strikes Clauses (Air Cargo) RISKS COVERED

Risks

- This insurance covers, except as excluded by the provisions of Clause 3 below, loss of or damage to the subject-matter insured caused by
- 1.1 strikers, locked-out workmen, or persons taking part in labour disturbances, riots or civil commotions
- 1.2 any act of terrorism being an act of any person acting on behalf of, or in connection with, any organisation which carries out activities directed towards the overthrowing or influencing, by force or violence, of any government whether or not legally constituted

1.3 any person acting from a political, ideological or religious motive.

Salvage Charges

2. This insurance covers salvage charges incurred to avoid or in connection with the avoidance of loss from any cause except those excluded in Clause 3 below.

EXCLUSIONS

- 3. In no case shall this insurance cover
 - 3.1 loss damage or expense attributable to wilful misconduct of the Assured
 - 3.2 ordinary leakage, ordinary loss in weight or volume, or ordinary wear and tear of the subject-matter insured
 - 3.3 loss damage or expense caused by insufficiency or unsuitability of packing or preparation of the subject- matter insured to withstand the ordinary incidents of the insured transit where such packing or preparation is carried out by the Assured or their employees or prior to the attachment of this insurance (for the purpose of this Clause 3.3 "packing" shall be deemed to include stowage in a container and "employees" shall not include independent contractors)
 - 3.4 loss damage or expense caused by inherent vice or nature of the subjectmatter insured
 - 3.5 loss damage or expense arising from unfitness of aircraft conveyance or container for the safe carriage of the subject-matter insured, where loading therein or thereon is carried out prior to attachment of this insurance or by the Assured or their employees and they are privy to such unfitness at the time of loading. This exclusion shall not apply where the contract of insurance has been assigned to the party claiming hereunder who has bought or agreed to buy the subject-matter insured in good faith under a binding contract.
 - 3.6 loss damage or expense caused by delay, even though the delay be caused by a risk insured against
 - insured against
 3.7 loss damage or expense caused by insolvency or financial default of the owners managers charterers or operators of the aircraft where, at the time of loading of the subject-matter insured on board the aircraft, the Assured are aware, or in the ordinary course of business should be aware, that such
 - business should be aware, that such insolvency or financial default could prevent the normal prosecution of the transit. This exclusion shall not apply where the contract of insurance has been assigned to the party claiming hereunder who has bought or agreed to buy the subject-matter insured in good faith under a binding contract
 - 3.8 loss damage or expense arising from the absence shortage or withholding of labour of any description whatsoever resulting from any strike, lockout, labour disturbance, riot or civil commotion
 - 3.9 any claim based upon loss of or frustration of the transit or adventure
 - 3.10 loss damage or expense directly or indirectly caused by or arising from the use of any weapon or device employing atomic or nuclear fission and/or fusion or other like reaction or radioactive force or matter
 - 3.11 loss damage or expense caused by war civil war revolution rebellion insurrection, or civil strife arising therefrom, or any hostile act by or against a belligerent power.

DURATION Transit Clause

- 4.
 - 4.1 Subject to Clause 7 below, this insurance attaches from the time the subject-matter insured is first moved in the warehouse, premises or at the place of storage (at the place named in the contract of insurance) for the purpose of the immediate loading into or onto the carrying vehicle or other conveyance for the commencement of transit, continues during the ordinary course of transit and terminates either
 - 4.1.1 on completion of unloading from the carrying vehicle or other conveyance in or at the final warehouse, premises or place of storage at the destination named in the contract of insurance,
 - 4.1.2 on completion of unloading from the carrying vehicle or other conveyance in or at any other warehouse, premises or place of storage, whether prior to or at the destination named in the contract of insurance, which the Assured or their employees elect to use either for storage other than in the ordinary course of transit or for allocation or distribution, or
 - 4.1.3 when the Assured or their employees elect to use any carrying vehicle or other conveyance or any container for storage other than in the ordinary course of transit or
 - 4.1.4 on the expiry of 30 days after completion of unloading of the subject-matter insured from the aircraft at the final place of discharge, whichever shall first occur.
 - 4.2 If, after unloading from the aircraft at the final place of discharge, but prior to termination of this insurance, the subjectmatter insured is to be forwarded to a destination other than that to which it is insured, this insurance, whilst remaining subject to termination as provided in Clauses 4.1.1 to 4.1.4, shall not extend beyond the time the subject-matter insured is first moved for the purpose of the commencement of transit to such other destination.
 - 4.3 This insurance shall remain in force (subject to termination as provided for in Clauses 4.1.1 to 4.1.4 above and to the provisions of Clause 5 below) during delay beyond the control of the Assured, any deviation, forced discharge, reshipment or transhipment and during any variation of the adventure arising from the exercise of a liberty granted to the air carriers under the contract of carriage.

Termination of Contract of Carriage

- 5. If owing to circumstances beyond the control of the Assured either the contract of carriage is terminated at a place other than the destination named therein or the transit is otherwise terminated before unloading of the subjectmatter insured as provided for in Clause 4 above, then this insurance shall also terminate unless prompt notice is given to the Insurers and continuation of cover is requested when this insurance shall remain in force, subject to an additional premium if required by the Insurers, either
 - 5.1 until the subject-matter insured is sold and delivered at such place, or, unless

^{© 2016} Chubb. Coverages underwritten by one or more subsidiary companies. Not all coverages available in all jurisdictions. Chubb®, its respective logos and Chubb. Insured.SM are protected trademarks of Chubb.

otherwise specially agreed, until the expiry of 30 days after arrival of the subjectmatter insured at such place, whichever shall first occur, Or

5.2 if the subject-matter insured is forwarded within the said period of 30 days (or any agreed extension thereof) to the destination named in the contract of insurance or to any other destination, until terminated in accordance with the provisions of Clause 4 above.

Change of Transit

6.

- 6.1 Where. after attachment of this insurance, the destination is changed by the Assured, this must be notified promptly to Insurers for rates and terms to be agreed. Should a loss occur prior to such agreement being obtained cover may be provided but only if cover would have been available at a reasonable commercial market rate on would reasonable market terms.
- Where the subject-matter insured commences the transit contemplated by 6.2 this insurance (in accordance with Clause 4.1), but, without the knowledge of the Assured or their employees the aircraft leaves for another destination, this insurance will nevertheless be deemed to have attached at commencement of such transit.

CLAIMS

Insurable Interest 7.

- In order to recover under this insurance 7.1 the Assured must have an insurable interest in the subject- matter insured at the time of the loss.
- Subject to Clause 7.1 above, the Assured 7.2shall be entitled to recover for insured loss occurring during the period covered by this insurance, notwithstanding that the loss occurred before the contract of insurance was concluded, unless the Assured were aware of the loss and the Insurers were not.

Increased Value 8

8.1 If any Increased Value insurance is effected by the Assured on the subjectmatter insured under this insurance the agreed value of the subject-matter insured shall be deemed to be increased to the total amount insured under this insurance and all Increased Value insurances covering the loss, and liability under this insurance shall be in such proportion as the sum insured under this insurance bears to such total amount insured.

In the event of claim the Assured shall provide the Insurers with evidence of the amounts insured under all other insurances.

8.2 Where this insurance is on Increased Value

the following clause shall apply: The agreed value of the subject-matter insured shall be deemed to be equal to the total amount insured under the primary insurance and all Increased Value insurances covering the loss and effected on the subject-matter insured by the Assured, and liability under this insurance shall be in such proportion as the sum insured under this insurance bears to such total amount insured.

In the event of claim the Assured shall provide the Insurers with evidence of the amounts insured under all other insurances.

BENEFIT OF INSURANCE

9. This insurance

- covers the Assured which includes the 9.1 person claiming indemnity either as the person by or on whose behalf the contract of insurance was effected or as an assignee.
- shall not extend to or otherwise benefit 9.2 the carrier or other bailee.

MINIMISING LOSSES

Duty of Assured

- 10. It is the duty of the Assured and their employees and agents in respect of loss recoverable hereunder
 - 10.1 to take such measures as may be reasonable for the purpose of averting or minimising such loss, and
 - 10.2 to ensure that all rights against carriers, bailees or other third parties are properly preserved and exercised and the Insurers will, in addition to any loss recoverable hereunder, reimburse the Assured for any charges properly and reasonably incurred in pursuance of these duties.

Waiver

11. Measures taken by the Assured or the Insurers with the object of saving, protecting or recovering the subject- matter insured shall not be considered as a waiver or acceptance of abandonment or otherwise prejudice the rights of either party.

AVOIDANCE OF DELAY 12. It is a condition of this insurance that the Assured shall act with reasonable despatch in all circumstances within their control.

LAW AND PRACTICE 13. This insurance is subject to English law and practice.

Note: Where a continuation of cover is requested under Clause 5, or a change of destination is notified under Clause 6, there is an obligation to give prompt notice to the Insurers and the right to such cover is dependent upon compliance with this obligation.

© Copyright: 12/08 - Lloyd's Market Association (LMA) and International Underwriting Association of London (IUA). CL389 01/01/2009

1/1/09

Institute Cargo Clauses (C) **RISKS COVERED**

Risks

1.1

- This insurance covers, except as excluded by the 1. provisions of Clauses 4, 5, 6 and 7 below,
 - loss of or damage to the subject-matter insured reasonably attributable to
 - 1.1.1 fire or explosion 1.1.2 vessel or craft being stranded
 - grounded sunk or capsized 1.1.3 overturning or derailment of land
 - conveyance 1.1.4 collision or contact of vessel craft or conveyance with any external
 - object other than water discharge of cargo at a port of 1.1.5 distress,

5

loss of or damage to the subject-matter insured caused by 1.2.1 general average sacrifice 1.2.2 jettison.

General Average

This insurance covers general average and salvage charges, adjusted or determined according to the contract of carriage and/or the governing law and practice, incurred to avoid or in connection with the avoidance of loss from any cause except those excluded in Clauses 4, 5, 6 and 7 below.

"Both to Blame Collision Clause"

This insurance indemnifies the Assured, in respect of any risk insured herein, against 3. liability incurred under any Both to Blame Collision Clause in the contract of carriage. In the event of any claim by carriers under the said Clause, the Assured agree to notify the Insurers who shall have the right, at their own cost and expense, to defend the Assured against such claim.

EXCLUSIONS

- 4. In no case shall this insurance cover
 - loss damage or expense attributable to 4.1 wilful misconduct of the Assured
 - ordinary leakage, ordinary loss in weight or volume, or ordinary wear and tear of the subject-matter insured
 - loss damage or expense caused by 4.3 insufficiency or unsuitability of packing or preparation of the subject- matter insured to withstand the ordinary incidents of the insured transit where such packing or preparation is carried out by the Assured or their employees or prior to the attachment of this insurance (for the purpose of these Clauses "packing" shall be deemed to include stowage in a container and "employees" shall include independent not contractors)
 - 4.4 loss damage or expense caused by inherent vice or nature of the subject-matter insured
 - loss damage or expense caused by delay, 4.5 even though the delay be caused by a risk insured against (except expenses payable under Clause 2 above)
 - 4.6 loss damage or expense caused by insolvency or financial default of the owners managers charterers or operators of the vessel where, at the time of loading of the subject-matter insured on board the vessel, the Assured are aware, or in the ordinary course of business should be aware, that such insolvency or financial default could prevent the normal prosecution of the voyage This exclusion shall not apply where the

contract of insurance has been assigned to the party claiming hereunder who has bought or agreed to buy the subject-matter insured in good faith under a binding contract

- deliberate damage to or deliberate destruction of the subject-matter insured or any part thereof by the wrongful act of 4.7 any person or persons
- loss damage or expense directly or indirectly caused by or arising from the 4.8 use of any weapon or device employing atomic or nuclear fission and/or fusion or other like reaction or radioactive force or matter.
- 5.1In no case shall this insurance cover loss damage or expense arising from

- 5.1.1 unseaworthiness of vessel or craft or unfitness of vessel or craft for the safe carriage of the subjectmatter insured, where the Assured are privy to such unseaworthiness or unfitness, at the time the subject-matter insured is loaded therein
- 5.1.2 unfitness of container or conveyance for the safe carriage of the subject-matter insured, where loading therein or thereon is carried out prior to attachment of this insurance or by the Assured or their employees and they are privy to such unfitness at the time of loading. Exclusion 5.1.1 above shall not apply
- 5.2where the contract of insurance has been assigned to the party claiming hereunder who has bought or agreed to buy the subject-matter insured in good faith under a binding contract.
- The Insurers waive any breach of the 5.3implied warranties of seaworthiness of the ship and fitness of the ship to carry the subject-matter insured to destination.
- 6. In no case shall this insurance cover loss damage or expense caused by
 - war civil war revolution rebellion 6.1 insurrection, or civil strife arising therefrom, or any hostile act by or against a belligerent power
 - capture seizure arrest restraint or 6.2 detainment, and the consequences thereof or any attempt thereat
 - derelict mines torpedoes bombs or other 6.3 derelict weapons of war.
- In no case shall this insurance cover loss 7. damage or expense
 - caused by strikers, locked-out workmen, or 7.1part in persons taking labour disturbances, riots or civil commotions
 - resulting from strikes, lock-outs, labour disturbances, riots or civil commotions 7.2
 - caused by any act of terrorism being an act 7.3 of any person acting on behalf of, or in connection with, any organisation which carries out activities directed towards the overthrowing or influencing, by force or violence, of any government whether or not legally constituted
 - caused by any person acting from a political, ideological or religious motive.

DURATION

Transit Clause 8.

- Subject to Clause 11 below, this insurance 8.1 attaches from the time the subject-matter insured is first moved in the warehouse or at the place of storage (at the place named in the contract of insurance) for the purpose of the immediate loading into or onto the carrying vehicle or other conveyance for the commencement of transit, continues during the ordinary course of transit and terminates either
 - on completion of unloading 8.1.1 from the carrying vehicle or other conveyance in or at the final warehouse or place of storage at the destination named in the contract of insurance,
 - on completion of unloading 8.1.2 from the carrying vehicle or other conveyance in or at any other warehouse or place of

storage, whether prior to or at the destination named in the contract of insurance, which the Assured or their employees elect to use either for storage other than in the ordinary course of transit or for allocation or distribution, or

- 8.1.3 when the Assured or their employees elect to use any carrying vehicle or other conveyance or any container for storage other than in the ordinary course of transit or
- on the expiry of 60 days after 8.1.4 completion of discharge overside of the subject-matter of insured from the oversea vessel at the final port of discharge, whichever shall first occur.
- 8.2 If, after discharge overside from the oversea vessel at the final port of discharge, but prior to termination of this insurance, the subject-matter insured is to be forwarded to a destination other than that to which it is insured, this insurance, whilst remaining subject to termination as provided in Clauses 8.1.1 to 8.1.4, shall not extend beyond the time the subject-matter insured is first moved for the purpose of the commencement of transit to such other destination.
- 8.3 This insurance shall remain in force (subject to termination as provided for in Clauses 8.1.1 to 8.1.4 above and to the provisions of Clause 9 below) during delay beyond the control of the Assured, any deviation, forced discharge, reshipment or transhipment and during any variation of the adventure arising from the exercise of a liberty granted to carriers under the contract of carriage.

- **Termination of Contract of Carriage** 9. If owing to circumstances beyond the control of the Assured either the contract of carriage is terminated at a port or place other than the destination named therein or the transit is otherwise terminated before unloading of the embedded as any ideal of the inclusion. subject-matter insured as provided for in Clause 8 above, then this insurance shall also terminate unless prompt notice is given to the Insurers and continuation of cover is requested when this insurance shall remain in force, subject to an additional premium if required by the Insurers, either
 - 9.1 until the subject-matter insured is sold and delivered at such port or place, or, unless otherwise specially agreed, until the expiry of 60 days after arrival of the subject-matter insured at such port or place, whichever shall first occur, Or
 - if the subject-matter insured is forwarded 9.2 within the said period of 60 days (or any agreed extension thereof) to the destination named in the contract of insurance or to any other destination, until terminated in accordance with the provisions of Clause 8 above.

Change of Voyage 10.

10.1 Where, after attachment of this insurance, the destination is changed by the Assured, this must be notified promptly to Insurers for rates and terms to be agreed. Should a loss occur prior to such agreement being obtained cover may be provided but only if cover would have been available at a reasonable commercial market rate on reasonable market terms.

Where the subject-matter insured 10.2 commences the transit contemplated by this insurance (in accordance with Clause 8.1), but, without the knowledge of the Assured or their employees the ship sails for another destination, this insurance will nevertheless be deemed to have attached at commencement of such transit.

CLAIMS

Insurable Interest 11.

- 11.1 In order to recover under this insurance the Assured must have an insurable interest in the subject- matter insured at the time of the loss.
- 11.2 Subject to Clause 11.1 above, the Assured shall be entitled to recover for insured loss occurring during the period covered by this insurance, notwithstanding that the loss occurred before the contract of insurance was concluded, unless the Assured were aware of the loss and the Insurers were not.

Forwarding Charges

12. Where, as a result of the operation of a risk covered by this insurance, the insured transit is terminated at a port or place other than that to which the subject-matter insured is covered under this insurance, the Insurers will reimburse the Assured for any extra charges properly and reasonably incurred in unloading storing and forwarding the subject-matter insured to the destination to which it is insured. This Clause 12, which does not apply to general average or salvage charges, shall be subject to the exclusions contained in Clauses 4, 5, 6 and 7 above, and shall not include charges arising from the fault negligence insolvency or financial default of the Assured or their employees.

Constructive Total Loss

13. No claim for Constructive Total Loss shall be recoverable hereunder unless the subject-matter insured is reasonably abandoned either on account of its actual total loss appearing to be unavoidable or because the cost of recovering, reconditioning and forwarding the subjectmatter insured to the destination to which it is insured would exceed its value on arrival.

Increased Value 14.

- 14.1 If any Increased Value insurance is effected by the Assured on the subject-matter insured under this insurance the agreed value of the subject-matter insured shall be deemed to be increased to the total amount insured under this insurance and all Increased Value insurances covering the loss, and liability under this insurance shall be in such proportion as the sum insured under this insurance bears to such total amount insured.In the event of claim the Assured shall provide the Insurers with evidence of the amounts insured under all other insurances.
- Where this insurance is on Increased Value 14.2 the following clause shall apply: The agreed value of the subject-matter insured shall be deemed to be equal to the total amount insured under the primary insurance and all Increased Value insurances covering the loss and effected on the subject-matter insured by the Assured, and liability under this insurance shall be in such proportion as the sum insured under this insurance bears to such total amount insured.

^{© 2016} Chubb. Coverages underwritten by one or more subsidiary companies. Not all coverages available in all jurisdictions. Chubb®, its respective logos and Chubb. Insured.SM are protected trademarks of Chubb.

In the event of claim the Assured shall provide the Insurers with evidence of the amounts insured under all other insurances.

BENEFIT OF INSURANCE

15. This insurance

- 15.1 covers the Assured which includes the person claiming indemnity either as the person by or on whose behalf the contract of insurance was effected or as an assignee,
- 15.2 shall not extend to or otherwise benefit the carrier or other bailee.

MINIMISING LOSSES

Duty of Assured

16. It is the duty of the Assured and their employees and agents in respect of loss recoverable hereunder

- 16.1 to take such measures as may be reasonable for the purpose of averting or minimising such loss, and
- 16.2 to ensure that all rights against carriers, bailees or other third parties are properly preserved and exercised and the Insurers will, in addition to any loss recoverable hereunder, reimburse the Assured for any charges properly and reasonably incurred in pursuance of these duties.

Waiver

17. Measures taken by the Assured or the Insurers with the object of saving, protecting or recovering the subject-matter insured shall not be considered as a waiver or acceptance of abandonment or otherwise prejudice the rights of either party.

AVOIDANCE OF DELAY

 It is a condition of this insurance that the Assured shall act with reasonable despatch in all circumstances within their control.

LAW AND PRACTICE

19. This insurance is subject to English law and practice.

Note: Where a continuation of cover is requested under Clause 9, or a change of destination is notified under Clause 10, there is an obligation to give prompt notice to the Insurers and the right to such cover is dependent upon compliance with this obligation.

© Copyright: 11/08 - Lloyd's Market Association (LMA) and International Underwriting Association of London (IUA). CL384 01/01/2009

(JC 98/019 1 May 1998)

Loading And Unloading Clause

The transit clause incorporated in the Institute Clauses is extended to include the subject-matter insured during loading and unloading.

Cover under this clause attaches at the time the goods are lifted from the ground or loading dock immediately adjacent to the conveyance, continues during the ordinary course of transit as per Institute Clauses herein and terminates once the goods have been lifted from the conveyance and replaced on the ground immediately adjacent hereto.

Provided however that if the goods are not unloaded at the destination as per the duration clause of the Institute Clauses herein cover under this clause ceases. In order to recover under this clause the Assured must have an insurable interest in the subject-matter at the time of loss.

1/1/34

Institute Replacement Clause

In the event of loss of or damage to any part or parts of an insured machine caused by a peril covered by the Policy the sum recoverable shall not exceed the cost of replacement or repair of such part or parts plus charges for forwarding and refitting, if incurred, but excluding duty unless the full is included in the amount insured, in which case loss, if any, sustained by payment of additional duty shall also be recoverable.

Provided always that in no case shall the liability of the Company exceed the insured value of the complete machine.

CL 161

Institute Replacement Clause (Second-Hand Machinery)

In the event of claim for loss or damage to any part of parts of the insured interest in consequence of a peril covered by the policy, the amount recoverable shall not exceed such proportion of the cost of replacement of the parts lost or damaged as the insured value bears to the value of new machinery, plus additional charges for forwarding and refitting the new part or parts if incurred.

Provided always that in no case shall the liability of underwriters exceed the insured value of the complete machine.

Institute Cyber Attack Exclusion Clause

- 1.1 Subject only to clause 1.2 below, in no case shall this insurance cover loss damage liability or expense directly or indirectly caused by or contributed to by or arising from the use or operation, as a means for inflicting harm, of any computer, computer system, computer software programme, malicious code, computer virus or process or any other electronic system.
- operation, as a means for inflicting harm, of any computer, computer system, computer software programme, malicious code, computer virus or process or any other electronic system.
 1.2 Where this clause is endorsed on policies covering risks of war, civil war, revolution, rebellion, insurrection, or civil strife arising therefrom, or any hostile act by or against a belligerent power, or terrorism or any person acting from a political motive, Clause 1.1 shall not operate to exclude losses (which would otherwise be covered) arising from the use of any computer, computer system or computer software programme or any other electronic system in the launch and/or guidance system and/or firing mechanism of any weapon or missile.

CL 380 10/11/2003

Institute Radioactive Contamination, Chemical, Biological, Bio-Chemical And Electromagnetic Weapons Exclusion Clause

This clause shall be paramount and shall override anything contained in this insurance inconsistent therewith

- 1. In no case shall this insurance cover loss damage liability or expense directly or indirectly caused by or contributed to by or arising from
 - 1.1 ionising radiations from or contamination by radioactivity from any nuclear fuel or from any nuclear waste or from the combustion of nuclear fuel
 - 1.2 the radioactive, toxic, explosive or other hazardous or contaminating properties of any nuclear installation, reactor or other nuclear assembly or nuclear component thereof
 - 1.3 any weapon or device employing atomic or nuclear fission and/or fusion or other like reaction or radioactive force or matter

- 1.4 the radioactive, toxic, explosive or other hazardous or contaminating properties of any radioactive matter. The exclusion in this sub-clause does not extend to radioactive isotopes, other than nuclear fuel, when such isotopes are being prepared, carried, stored, or used for commercial, agricultural, medical, scientific or other similar peaceful purposes.
- 1.5 any chemical, biological, bio-chemical, or electromagnetic weapon

CL 370

Information Technology Hazards Clause

Losses otherwise recoverable under this Contract arising, directly or indirectly, out of : 1. loss of, or damage to, or

2. a reduction or alteration in the functionality or operation

of a computer system, hardware, programme, software, data, information repository, microchip, integrated circuit or similar device in or connected with computer equipment or non-computer equipment, whether the property of the policyholder of the reinsured or not, Shall not be aggregated.

If such losses are caused directly by one or more of the following physical perils, namely:

theft of equipment, collision, sinking, grounding or stranding of carrying vessel, overturning or derailment of land conveyance, jettison or washing overboard, fire, lighting, explosion, aircraft or vehicle impact, falling objects, windstorm, hail, tornado, cyclone, hurricane, earthquake, volcano, tsunami, flood, freeze or weight of snow,

Then this clause shall not prevent the aggregation of losses if otherwise permitted under the terms of this Contract if they are caused by any such peril(s). A Joint Committee of the IUA and LUA

Date Recognition Endorsement

(Casualty / Liability Category And Mixed Property / Casualty / Liability Category)

It is noted and agreed this policy is hereby amended as follows:

The Company will not pay for any loss or damage including loss of use with or without physical damage, injury (including bodily injury), expenses incurred or any consequential loss directly or indirectly caused by, consisting of, or arising from

the failure or inability of any computer, data processing equipment, media microchip, operating systems, microprocessors (computer chip), integrated circuit or similar device, or any computer software, whether the property of the Insured or not, and whether occuring before, during or after the year 2000 that results from the failure or inability of such device and/or software as listed above to:

- correctly recognize any date as its true calendar date;
- capture, save, retain, and/or correctly manipulate, interpret or process any data or information or command or instruction as a result of treating any date other than its true calendar date; and/or
- capture, save, retain or correctly process any data as a result of the operation of any command which has been programmed into any computer software, being a command which causes the loss of data or the inability to

^{© 2016} Chubb. Coverages underwritten by one or more subsidiary companies. Not all coverages available in all jurisdictions. Chubb®, its respective logos and Chubb. Insured.SM are protected trademarks of Chubb.

capture, save, retain or correctly process such data on or after any date.

It is further understood that the Company will not pay for the repair or modification of any part of any electronic data processing system or any part of any device and/or software as listed above in A.

It is further understood that the Company will not pay for any loss or damage including loss of use with or without physical damage, injury (including bodily injury) expenses incurred or any consequential loss directly or indirectly arising from any advice, consultation, design, evaluation, inspection, installation, maintenance, repair or supervision done by the Insured or for the Insured.

It is further understood that the Company will not pay for any consequential loss resulting from any continuing inability of the computer and equipment described in A above to correctly recognize any date as its true calendar date after the lost or damaged property has been replaced or repaired.

Such loss or damage, injury (including bodily injury), expenses incurred or any consequential loss referred to in A, B, C or D above, is excluded regardless of any other cause that contributed concurrently or in any other sequence to the same.

Termination Of Transit Clause (Terrorism) 2009

This clause shall be paramount and shall override anything contained in this insurance inconsistent therewith.

- Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in the contract of insurance or the Clauses referred to therein, it is agreed that in so far as the contract of insurance covers loss of or damage to the subject-matter insured caused by any act of terrorism being an act of any person acting on behalf of, or in connection with, any organisation which carries out activities directed towards the overthrowing or influencing, by force or violence, of any government whether or not legally constituted or any person acting from a political, ideological or religious motive, such cover is conditional upon the subject-matter insured being in the ordinary course of transit and, in any event, **SHALL TERMINATE: Either**
- 1.1 as per the transit clauses contained within the contract of insurance, or
- 1.2 on completion of unloading from the carrying vehicle or other conveyance in or at the final warehouse or place of storage at the destination named in the contract of insurance,
- 1.3 on completion of unloading from the carrying vehicle or other conveyance in or at any other warehouse or place of storage, whether prior to or at the destination named in the contract of insurance, which the Assured or their employees elect to use either for storage other than in the ordinary course of transit or for allocation or distribution, or
- 1.4 when the Assured or their employees elect to use any carrying vehicle or other conveyance or any container for storage other than in the ordinary course of transit, or _____



- 1.5 in respect of marine transits, on the expiry of 60 days after completion of discharge overside of the subject-matter insured from the oversea vessel at the final port of discharge,
- 1.6 in respect of air transits, on the expiry of 30 days after unloading the subject-matter insured from the aircraft at the final place of discharge,

whichever shall first occur.

2. If the contract of insurance or the Clauses referred to therein specifically provide cover for inland or other further transits following on from storage, or termination as provided for above, cover will re-attach, and continues during the ordinary course of that transit terminating again in accordance with clause 1.

JC2009/056 01/01/2009

Sanction Limitation And Exclusion Clause

No (re)insurer shall be deemed to provide cover and no (re)insurer shall be liable to pay any claim or provide any benefit hereunder to the extent that the provision of such cover, payment of such claim or provision of such benefit would expose that (re)insurer to any sanction, prohibition or restriction under United Nations resolutions or the trade or economic sanctions, laws or regulations of the European Union, United Kingdom or United States of America.

JC2010/014 11 August 2010

About Chubb in China

Chubb is the world's largest publicly traded property and casualty insurer. With operations in 54 countries, Chubb provides commercial and personal property and casualty insurance, personal accident and supplemental health insurance. reinsurance and life insurance to a diverse group of clients. The company is distinguished by its extensive product and service offerings, broad distribution capabilities, exceptional financial strength, underwriting excellence, superior claims handling expertise and local operations globally. Parent company Chubb Limited is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE: CB) and is a component of the S&P 500 index. Chubb maintains executive offices in Zurich, New York, London and other locations, and employs approximately 30,000 people worldwide. Chubb's participation in China's insurance market dates back to 1897, when the Insurance Company of North America, now a subsidiary of Chubb, was appointed an agent in Shanghai. It was the first U.S. insurance company to conduct business in China. In 2000, Chubb set up a branch company in Shanghai, which was converted into Chubb Insurance (China) Company Limited in 2008 upon the approval of China Insurance Regulatory Commission.

Chubb in China provides risk management and underwriting expertise for all major classes of general insurance, including Property, Casualty, Marine and Financial Lines. It also offers a range of group and personal Accident and Health insurance products for corporate clients and individuals. The company currently has two operations in Shanghai and Jiangsu provinces, with plans to commence operations in the Guangdong province and other regions in the near future. Chubb in China leverages global expertise and local acumen to tailor solutions for the diverse risk management needs of its clients. More information can be found at

www.chubb.com.cn

Contact Us

Chubb Insurance Company Limited

Unit 801, Century Metropolis, No. 1229 Century Avenue Pudong, Shanghai, 200122 Telephone: +86 (021) 2325 6756 Fax: +86 (021) 5292 5880 Website: <u>www.chubb.com.cn</u>

Chubb. Insured.